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| am pleased to present the annual results of Group Sense
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group Sense Group” or the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2015 on behalf of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) for the shareholders’
perusal.

Due to the change in control of the Company, the new Board
was formed on 26 March 2015. We are in the process of
reviewing the Group’s existing business activities and assets
for the advance planning of future business development
and strategies.

As for the current business, the Group has been depending
on the existing management team to strengthen and
improve its electronic products business. The Group will
put more resources on developing suitable products for
the PRC market as well as exploring more PRC Electronic
Manufacturing Service (EMS) business. The Group will
continue to strengthen collaboration and partnership to add
flexibility of the research and development capabilities. At
the same time, the Group will also control its overhead and
integrate the existing businesses to increase the overall
management and operating efficiency.

Meanwhile, the Board is in search of other business
opportunities in order to explore new business and speed
up the Group’s development. The Group will proactively
pursue magnesium and its ancillary investment or business
opportunities, and explore the development of magnesium
and its ancillary business as an industry chain business
model of circular economy, so as to fully utilise its
advantage and enhance the Group’s potential growth in the
long run and create better return for the shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of the Company does not recommend any
payment of final dividend to the shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our Shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continual support.

By order of the Board
Mr. Shum Sai Chit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As the global adverse economic and market situation
continues in the year of 2014, overall sales revenues of the
Group has been slumped. In order to adapt this situation,
certain strategic adjustments on its product development,
manufacturing and sales had been implemented. A review
on the strategies and progress of each business units of the
Group were as follows:

Manufacturing Business Unit

Following the streamline adjustments made last year, plus
the expansion of the “Electronic Manufacturing Services”
(“EMS”), the results of the Manufacturing Business Unit
under review has slightly improved. The Manufacturing
Business Unit will continue to strive for enhancing its
production efficiency, in order to keep its competitiveness.
In overview, the Group is confident in respect of the
improvement in the performance of MBU in the coming year.

Strategic Products Strategic Business Unit (“SP”)
The sales to Japan decreased due to the unfavorable
impact of the continual depreciation of Japanese yen and
the economic downturn in Japan. The business unit will
continue to build and strengthen collaboration with design
houses to improve its flexibility and competitiveness. There
was also minor restructuring of the Japan subsidiary while
more effort will be put on improving the overall operational
efficiency. As for the product trend, the business unit will
focus on products for children, especially wearables and
toy-products. The business unit also initiated a business
transformation aimed at driving growth and creating new
value.

Personal Communication Products Strategic
Business Unit

The sales revenue of Personal Communication Products
Strategic Business Unit (“PCP SBU”) slightly lagged
behind its forecasted amounted in the year under review.
The reason for this was mainly attributable to the delay in
development causing certain new products could not be
launched to market as planned schedule.

As mobile payment becomes more popular, PCP SBU has
been cooperating with a local mobile service provider for a
new mobile POS terminals for a new experience of payment
and CRM system for hospitality and retail industries. The
popularity of cloud computing and mobile payment leads
to an increase in demand for POS wireless terminals by the
enterprises.
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OUTLOOK

After the consolidation of operation of the Business Units
of the Group, it is expected that the business development
capabilities will be enhanced. The Group will deploy more
resources in market development to boost sales.

New sources of customers for the EMS and Original
Equipment Manufacturing business were located. Orders for
new EMS and ODM business were expected which helps to
increase the sales in various business units.

Apart from manufacturing and selling of hardware, the
Group will introduce more value-added services including
online services and e-commerce.

On 14 May 2015, the Group entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with independent
third parties (the “Vendor”) in relation to the proposed
acquisition of 100% equity interest in a project operating
company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) (the
“Target Company”) as owned by the Vendor (the “Proposed
Acquisition”).

06 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015



THEFARRSH(E)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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OUTLOOK (continued)

The production capacity of the operating projects of the
Target Company approved by the regulatory bodies in the
PRC comprises 1,200,000 tons of clean energy, 100,000
tons of magnesium and 100,000 tons of ferrosilicon per
annum. An industry chain model of circular economy in
magnesium and magnesium product can be realized
upon the completion of all projects. Currently, the Target
Company has completed a magnesium production line
with capacity of 15,000 tons per annum, along with a clean
energy production line with capacity of 600,000 tons per
annum, and corresponding production and living facilities.
The management considers the Proposed Acquisition can
facilitate the business development of the Group and is in
the interests of the Company and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Should the parties enter into the formal agreement, the
Company will publish further announcement(s) in respect
of the Proposed Acquisition in accordance with the Listing
Rules as and when appropriate.

The Group will continue to put effort to improve and enhance
its existing businesses. At the same time, the Group will
actively explore and identify any investment and other
business opportunities in relation to the magnesium product
and its ancillary business, and exercise the predominance
of the Group in fullest to diversify the business portfolio
to achieve stepping up and getting forward, as well as
enhancing the long term growth potential of the Group and
maximizing the shareholders’ benefits.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sales revenue of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2015 was approximately HK$223,933,000
representing a deduction of 36% compared with the same
period ended 31 March 2014. During the period under
review, PCP and SP business units recorded a sales revenue
of HK$67,914,000 and HK$156,019,000 respectively.

Operating loss of the Group during the year under
review was approximately HK$79,466,000 (2014:
approximately HK$78,673,000). After deducting finance
costs of approximately HK$998,000 (2014: approximately
HK$574,000) and other operating expenses of approximately
HK$30,040,000 (2014: approximately HK$7,542,000),
loss before tax was approximately HK$110,504,000
(2014: approximately HK$86,789,000). After taking into
account of taxation, loss for the year was approximately
HK$110,517,000 (2014: approximately HK$86,805,000).

Regarding the statement of financial position, inventories
decreased by HK$11,508,000 to approximately
HK$35,531,000 and trade receivables decreased by
HK$22,466,000 to approximately HK$21,121,000.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

On 31 March 2015, the bank balances and cash of the
Group (including the proceeds of new subscription of Shares
on 26 February 2015), were approximately HK$113,064,000
(2014: HK$34,497,000) of which HK$1,012,000 was pledged
(2014: HK$1,001,000). The Group’s bank borrowings as at
31 March 2015 were HK$27,781,000 (2014: HK$23,814,000).
The Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars with floating interest rate and short term in
nature.

As at 31 March 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group,
defined as total bank borrowings divided by shareholders’
equities, was approximately 13%. The interest expenses was
approximately HK$998,000 during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the contingent liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$4,895,000 (2014: approximately
HK$12,605,000).

08 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY
POLICY

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, United States dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury
policy of the Group is to manage significant currency
exposure and minimize currency risk whenever it may have
material impact to the Group. During the last twelve months
period, the Group did not engage in any interest rate or
currencies speculations.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has 86 employees (2014:
110 employees) in Hong Kong, 809 employees (2014: 1,014
employees) in China and 6 employees (2014. 11 employees)
in Japan, representing a decrease of approximately 22%,
20% and 45% respectively as compared with last year. In
addition to salary remuneration, the Group also provides
other fringe benefits such as annual leave, medical
insurance and provident fund, etc. for its staff.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group’s concern for the environment begins with its own
operations. The Group’s office in Hong Kong participated
the centralized automatic refuse collection system and
lighting control system. The Group encourages the adoption
of recycled or environmentally responsible materials as
well as paper and toner cartridges recycling. Besides, the
Group requests any relevant parts or materials delivered,
provided and/or supplied by the suppliers shall comply with
and observe Directive of the European Parliament and of the
Council on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous
substances in electrical and electronic equipment (RoHS),
Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council
on waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE),
Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council
on registration, evaluation, authorization and restriction of
chemicals (REACH) and other standards.

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the
ISO9001 Quality Management System and 1SO14001
Environmental Management System have been combined
since 2000. Onsite surveillance assessment is conducted
regularly by independent assessors to ensure compliance
and continual improvement. Internal audit teams have been
organized to perform compliance audit on an on-going
basis.
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the long-term development of the Group and
has devoted considerable efforts in identifying, formulating,
implementing and enhancing corporate governance
practices in accordance with the needs of the Group.
As mentioned below, the Company has established the
relevant committees/sub-committee and adopted certain
internal policies to improve internal controls and enhance
transparency of business operation of the Group with a view
to protect the interests of its stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Group regarding securities transactions of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) on terms no less
exactly than required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the financial
year ended 31 March 2015.
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THE BOARD

Currently, the Board comprises the following seven
Directors:

Executive Directors
Shum Sai Chit (Chairman)
Chi Bi Fen (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Professor Meng Jian
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Cheung Sound Poon

Chen Gang

Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, reviewing and
monitoring its financial performance, including preparing
and approving financial statements and overseeing
operational matters of the management, considering the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Daily
business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

Board meetings and practices

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices and agenda of regular board meetings are served
to all Directors at least fourteen days before the meetings to
ensure that all Directors are given the opportunity to attend
and to include matters in the agenda. Discussion materials
of regular board meetings are sent to all Directors for their
study at least three days prior to the meetings. Draft minutes
of board meetings are circulated to all Directors for review
and comments within a reasonable time after the meetings
prior to confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient
detail of the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings and practices (continued)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, six board
meetings were held by the Company, and the individual
attendance rate of each Director at meetings of the Board,
its committees and General Meetings is as follows:

it/ Brzed
Attended/held
EZ88E ENRZECE8E REZESEE FMZEEEeR HIEEZEE RREFAE
Executive
Audit Nomination ~Remuneration Management Members
Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings  Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
HTES Executive Directors
e Shum Sai Chit' 213 — 17 — 17 -
HER Chi Bi Fen' 213 — — 1/1 1/1 -
I Tam Wai Tong, Thomas” 4/4 — — — - 212
EifEa’ Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian® 414 — — — — 22
ARME? Kazuhiro Otani’ 4/4 — — - — 212
FRE’ Lee Koon Hung 4/4 — — - — )
FUTES Non-executive Directors
ZREHR Professor Meng Jian' 2/3 — — — - —
EEZ ﬂfw Tam Wai Ho, Samson JF° 6/6 — 17 — — 212
ERA’ Luk Chui Yung, Judith® 414 — — — — 202
BIEHTES  Independent Non-
executive Directors
BRx' Kwong Ping Man' 213 17 1/1 1/1 — -
REK Cheung Sound Poon’ 213 17 - 17 — —
R Chen Gang' 213 17 11 — - -
Favl Wong Kon Man, Jason® 4/4 414 17 — — 12
k@’ Fung Henry? 4/4 44 1/1 — — 212
FER? Li Chi Kwong? 4/4 4/4 — — - 22
! RZZE—RAF=FAREEEZHE ! Appointed on 5 March 2015
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BEZESAXAEMBEEER - EF
SN ZBILFATESRELDR
8158 3.13 16kt H 98 32 1% M B Bl 4 2 5

2 Resigned on 26 March 2015
8 Redesignated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director on 26
March 2015

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, sufficient number of Independent Non-executive
Directors have been appointed with one of them has
appropriate accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (continued)

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
The Company updates the Directors of the latest changes
in the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time. Apart
from encouraging the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development (“CPD”) courses to refresh and
enhance their knowledge and skills, the Company also
arranged an industry-related in-house seminar for the
Directors and provided them with reading materials relating
to the directors’ duties. All Directors have provided the
Company with their records of training they received during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

A summary of the trainings participated by the Directors
during the year ended 31 March 2015 is as follows:

BESERREIES
Types of continuous
professional
development

B= Directors training"”*
HITES Executive Directors
ot Shum Sai Chit' B
hEL Chi Bi Fen' B
EBER? Tam Wai Tong, Thomas? B
EgRE’ Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian® B
RAFE® Kazuhiro Otani? B
TR Lee Koon Hung® B
FHTES Non-executive Directors
miEHE Professor Meng Jian' B
EEg APHL? Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP® B
PERAS Luk Chui Yung, Judith? A KB
A and B
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
A Kwong Ping Man' AKB
A and B
REA Cheung Sound Poon' B
BRI Chen Gang' B
T#° Wong Kon Man, Jason? AL%B
A and B
Rk Fung Henry? ARB
A and B
FERH? Li Chi Kwong® ALB
A and B
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THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
continued)
Appointed on 5 March 2015
Resigned on 26 March 2015
Redesignated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director on 26
March 2015

W N a—~

Notes:

A:  Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)

B:  Reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the Company’s
business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, etc.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties of the Company in accordance
with the “Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance
Function” adopted by it:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
appropriate recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has performed the
following corporate governance duties:

e Reviewed and approved the contents of the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2014 annual report
of the Company;

e Adopted the “Board Diversity Policy”; and

e Reviewed the Whistle-blowing Policy of the Group
to ensure the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting and internal control, etc. were adequate.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Shum Sai Chit and Ms. Chi Bi Fen
respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are clearly segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is
principally responsible for the Group’s corporate planning
and financial management whereas the Chief Executive
Officer is principally responsible for the overall marketing
and sales strategies of the Group’s products.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors are fixed for a
specific term, and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has set up four committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Management
Committee respectively. Each committee is delegated with
specific authorities by the Board in assisting the Board to
discharge its duties and to administer particular aspects
of the Group’s activities. The roles and functions of each
committee are summarized below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company
has adopted Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee in
compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Cheung Sound Poon and Mr. Chen
Gang.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee is
to provide an independent and professional advice on
financial reporting, to evaluate the effectiveness of internal
control (including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget) and the sufficiency of external and internal
audits of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
After each Audit Committee meeting, the chairman of the
Audit Committee will report to the Board of the significant
issues discussed by the Committee for the Board’s
information and/or consideration.

The Audit Committee has held five meetings (two of which
have invited the auditors of the Company to participate) in
the financial year ended 31 March 2015. The major tasks
accomplished by it during year are summarized below:

e Reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 March
2014 and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2014, and confirmed that the accounting
principles and practices adopted as well as the
disclosures made in such financial statements were
appropriate, accurate and fair;

e Reviewed the quarterly financial position of the Group
for the months ended 30 June 2014 and 31 December
2014 respectively;

e Reviewed the internal audit reports submitted by the
Internal Audit Sub-committee of the Company, evaluated
and advised on the internal control procedures and risk
management matters;

e Discussed with the auditors on the scope of audit for
the financial year ended 31 March 2015 and approved
the auditors’ remuneration; and

e Reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996.
The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration Committee in compliance with code provision
B.1.2 of the Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
an Executive Director, namely Ms. Chi Bi Fen and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong
Ping Man (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Cheung Sound Poon.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure in relation to remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. It schedules
to meet at least once a year to review and determine the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
senior management and to make recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration of Non-executive Director. In
determining and approving the remuneration of Directors
and senior management of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will take into consideration of various factors
such as market competitiveness, individual performance and
profitability of the Company and its business units.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting in
the financial year ended 31 March 2015 to review the
existing remuneration policies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company, etc.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012.
The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the
Nomination Committee with reference to code provision
A.5.2 of the Code. The Nomination Committee comprises
an Executive Director, namely Mr. Shum Sai Chit (chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Mr.
Chen Gang.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors, assessing the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and monitoring
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has held two meeting in the
financial year ended 31 March 2015, together with by means
of written resolutions, to review and deal with the following
major issues:

e Reviewed the qualifications and experiences of
individual Directors as well as their roles and
responsibilities in the Group to ensure the existing
Board structure is fit for the business growth of the
Group; and

e Reviewed the degree of diversity of the existing Board;
and

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee was established
in 2005 with written terms of reference to operate as a
general management committee under the authority of the
Board. Currently, the Executive Management Committee
comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Shum Sai
Chit (chairman of the Executive Management Committee)
and Ms. Chi Bi Fen.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY SUMMARY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of its Board members. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and competence, and the candidates will
be considered against certain objective criteria such as
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional qualifications, areas of experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services, etc. The ultimate decision
will be based on merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total remunerations
paid/payable by the Company to its external auditors in
respect of the audit services and non-audit services are as
follows:

FHET
Bk 7% %8 5Bl Types of services HK$'000
FENZ RS Audit services 1,140
IEF X RS Non-audit services 135
15 Total 1,275
EERHVBHRR2EE DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

BEERARSEELRETEERD
TR AEEEERAREEZY
KRR - BE-_T—HRF=ZA=+—
BIFE AEERESEAEEBFR
#7110,517,0008 Jt(Z T — MW F : 4
86,805,000 7T) °
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PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs and results. The
Group recorded a consolidated net loss of approximately
HK$110,517,000 (2014: approximately HK$86,805,000) for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 33 to 34
of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year under review in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convention of Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
10% of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition to the Company’s registered office. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”).

Putting Forward Proposals at General meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act,
registered Shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal at a general meeting if they:

(a) represent not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of the Company at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b) are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolution(s) should be
duly signed by the registered Shareholder(s) concerned,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office. The Company would
take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements.
The Shareholder(s) concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Enquiries from Shareholders

The Board welcomes views, enquires and concerns in relation to
the management and corporate governance of the Group from
Shareholders. Shareholders may at any time send their enquires
and/or concerns to the Board in writing by email (gsl@gsl.com.
hk), by fax ((852) 2892 0361) or by mail to the principal place of
business of the Company for follow up.

For shareholding enquiries, Shareholders may contact the
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company was posted on the websites of the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (“Stock Exchange”) on
20 March 2012 and there is no change in such constitutional
document during the year.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control
of the Group. The system of internal control is designed to
manage and mitigate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives with reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to the
Audit Committee periodically. A comprehensive policy and
standard governing the process improvement and internal
audit scope and workflow, authority and integrity of the audit
staff, was promulgated in September 2006.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group which covers the
review of risk management functions, financial, operational
and compliance controls, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget, etc.. The Board considered the
internal control system of the Group effective and adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhance investor relationship by
increasing its transparency to the investment community.

The following measures have been taken by the Company
to keep investors informed of the latest developments and
news of the Group and to facilitate a two-way communication
between the Company and its Shareholders:

(a) Mailing corporate communication documents such
as interim reports, annual reports and circulars to the
Shareholders periodically and uploading the same on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(b) Publishing announcements through the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

(c) Making available of the Company’s corporate and
products information on its website;

(d) Organizing general meetings to facilitate direct
exchange of views between the Shareholders and the
management of the Company; and

(e) Encouraging investors to communicate with the
Company through the Company’s website from time to
time.

At the Company’s last AGM held on 11 September 2014,
all the resolutions relating to the adoption of financial
statements, re-election of Directors, reappointment of
auditors and grant of general mandates to issue and
repurchase shares have been duly passed. The forthcoming
2015 AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on 11
September 2015 at 10:00 a.m..
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SHUM Sai Chit, age 57, Chairman of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director
of Go Modern Limited which was principally engaged in
manufacturing of textile products and trading activities.
In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fujian Textiles Import and
Export Corporation as a Manager to oversee importing
and exporting of textile products. Mr. Shum is a graduate
of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics. Mr. Shum is
currently an executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509).

Ms. CHI Bi Fen, age 56, chief executive officer of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy
General Manager of an electronics equipment company over
17 years. She has an extensive experience in accounting,
taxation and finance in the PRC for more than 15 years.
She is a graduate of Accounting and Finance. Ms. Chi is
currently an executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor MENG Jian, age 58, is a professor and deputy
officer of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource
Utilisation, Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of
Chinese Academy of Science. He is a deputy officer of
Professional Committee of Solid Science and New Materials
of Chinese Society of Rare Earth. He is also a director
of Chinese Society of Rare Earth and Nonferrous Metals
Society of China. He is an expert of the Association of China
Rare Earth Industry and China Magnesium Association.
Professor Meng has been engaging in research and
development of rare earth magnesium alloys and new
materials. He has contributed to the development and
application of rare earth magnesium alloys in China.
Professor Meng majored in semiconducting from Jilin
University, and holds a master's degree from the chemistry
department of Chinese Academy of Science. He holds a
degree of doctor of Engineering from Toyohashi University of
Technology, Japan. Professor Meng is currently a consultant
of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
509) for rare earth magnesium alloys projects.

R (FER) AR AT » 2015 AFHE 23



EFEREREEARMANR)

Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

FHITES(E)

EREELT AF#L A+ —5H R
—NNARFEXZRBFRBRXKNE - &2
B2 BRREABEIANBEE &
HEEL2u- BB IR - AN_-F
ERETIXBREeRBIAATFIER
B IR-—NWNAEFEERSFREITKA
BEEFF] - BELTR _TET N\FE_
E-—FEFBLEIZEHB(BAMMK
) BBRLTHE/BBREREMRAE
B BAERMAFRESES R TH
MExmmpex \ExHEZE8E€%E8
FEEIXBENRBRZEBEER &
BRARABREGKRES -

BYFHITES

BRX KL At RARMNEER
BERRBIZESR - AR A ERRHA
AR o B EAERNZE R REEMBE
ERAO7E - BEERGE - Mg NIT
B E A BALF LR - Bk A TTES
FEEETRERR IEXREFTEELS
- BEERBEMAXSHMASEE
LBEEGHAMAGERSE  NAEE
AAWELGEL - BAARKREL
[t R EIE A AR (B R5R : 509)
FEE(RE)ZEREARE QA (RO :
1181) RN ZEKREB AR 2 F (K
AR : 907) & B AIERA IR 2 B (B D
5% 3708) 2B IFHAITESE °

REARLE A+ RAEBESET
iTE MAZEEE - RA4E ETGary
W.K. Yam & Co. (CPA) 7 & A% &AM -
REEBREBDBSFSA R ZELER -
R-EENF-_RAE_TT+FHAH
M REACHHLBAXERZRER
A (BB ASR - 509) 2B FFMITESRF
BIZZEEERE -

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson JP, aged 51, graduated from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with a
Bachelor degree of Science (Hons), and later was awarded
the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. In 1992, Dr Tam was awarded the
“Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong” and was named
one of the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in 1997. He
was an elected member of Legislative Council of Hong Kong
(Information Technology, 2008-2012) and is now Chairman
of the Hong Kong Business Angel Network, Chairman of
the Hong Kong Industry-University-Research Collaboration
Association, a member of the China Association for Science
and Technology (CAST), Chairman of the Technology
Development Committee of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries (FHKI) and Council Member of The Open
University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KWONG Ping Man, age 50, is a director of O’Park
Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate
advisory services. Mr. Kwong had served as the chief
financial officer of various companies for almost seven years.
Mr. Kwong has over 15 years of experience in accounting,
finance and administration. He obtained a master’'s degree
in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants, fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
Mr. Kwong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 509), Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1181), Elegance Optical International Holdings Ltd.
(Stock Code: 907) and Yat Sing Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
3708).

Mr. CHEUNG Sound Poon, age 54, is currently a senior
audit manager at Chui & Kwok (CPA). He was an audit
senior at Gary W. K. Yam & Co. (CPA). Mr. Cheung has over
35 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He was
an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of audit committee of Century Sunshine Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 509) between February 2004 and May
2007.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN Gang, aged 39, is the chief executive officer of
Weloan Inc in China. He has over 15 years of experience
in venture capital, private equity investment and fund
management. He was an investment director of China
Everbright Assets Management Limited, a senior manager
of Ajia Partners SSG (Hong Kong) Limited and a senior
investment officer of Kheng Leong Company (Private)
Limited. Mr. Chen took the role of financial advisor in initial
public offering (IPO) of many Chinese enterprises. He is
experienced in corporate restructuring, private equity,
IPO and post-IPO capital appreciation. He obtained a
bachelor degree of engineering from South China University
of Technology, a master’s degree of management from
Sichuan University and a master’'s degree of Engineering
from National University of Singapore.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, age 53, is responsible for
the overall marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s
products. Mr. Tam has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over
twenty-nine years of experience in marketing electronic
components and consumer electronic products. He received
“Advanced Technology Development Award” of “Capital
Magazine’s Outstanding Information Technology and
Financial Enterprise Awards” in August 2001.

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, age 54, is responsible for OEM/
ODM business in the Strategic Product Division of the
Group. He is the chief executive officer and president of
Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense, a subsidiary of the Group
in Japan. Mr. Otani graduated from the Kansai University
of Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan with a Bachelor of
Arts in Foreign Languages, and has been working for a
Japanese electronics company for fourteen years before he
joined the Group. He has spent the latter ten years in the
Hong Kong office of this Japanese company since 1987,
being responsible for sales and marketing of electronic
components such as IC, LCD, etc.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, age 52, joined the Group in 1988. Mr.
Lee is responsible for the personal communication products
business of the Group. He is also responsible for overseeing
the operation of the Information Technology Department of
the Group since September 2013. Mr. Lee graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with Higher Certificate
in Electronic Engineering and obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Computer Science from Asia International Open University
and a Master of Science’s degree in Engineering Business
Management from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom. He has thirty years of experience in electronic
product development.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 35 to 134.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
year under review and the Board does not recommend any
payment of final dividend to Shareholders for the year ended
31 March 2015. The retention of the loss of the Group as at
31 March 2015 was approximately HK$384,864,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 March 2015:

(i) The Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for 10% and 40% respectively of
the Group’s total revenue.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 8% and 16% respectively of
the Group’s total purchases (not including purchases of
items which are of capital in nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in the
five largest customers or the five largest suppliers.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities, and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 135. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year under review are set out in note
34 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2015, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution which was calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
(as amended). In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of approximately HK$460,312,000,
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Shum Sai Chit (appointed on 5 March 2015) (Chairman)

Chi Bi Fen (appointed on 5 March 2015)
(Chief Executive Officer)
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (resigned on 26 March 2015)

Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (resigned on 26 March 2015)
Kazuhiro OTANI (resigned on 26 March 2015)

Lee Koon Hung (resigned on 26 March 2015)
Non-executive Directors:

Professor Meng Jian (appointed on 5 March 2015)

Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP (redesignated from Executive

Director to Non-executive Director on 26 March 2015)
Luk Chiu Yung, Judith (resigned on 26 March 2015)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Kwong Ping Man (appointed on 5 March 2015)
Cheung Sound Poon (appointed on 5 March 2015)
Chen Gang (appointed on 5 March 2015)

Wong Kan Man, Jason (resigned on 26 March 2015)

Fung Henry (resigned on 26 March 2015)

Li Chi Kwong (resigned on 26 March 2015)

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Shum Sai
Chit, Ms. Chi Bi Fen, Professor Meng Jian, Mr. Kwong Ping
Man, Mr. Cheung Sound Poon and Mr. Chen Gang will hold
office until the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson JP will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.

Both of the Non-executive Directors and the Independent
Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term of
no more than one year.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man,
Mr. Cheung Sound Poon and Mr. Chen Gang, an annual
confirmation confirming their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2015, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

FEEBERROEEA (FR)
Number of ordinary shares held (long position)
BAER EE RS HERT
(LEBHEFA RixER (BREEHE REz
EENA BHEH) (B fEER) 58) wEm BAO
Personal Family Corporate
interests (held interests  interests (held
as beneficial (interest of by controlled % of issued
Names of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) Total share capital
BER rvat 31,732,000 2,300,000 37,877,118 71,909,118 5.00
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Wi 1) (Note 1) (W5t 2) (Note 2)

HiEE

A

1. ZERNESHEERBELIATHAILERERE
SRR 2 25,732,000 A 1D -

37,877,118 % B% 15 LAEarnmill Holdings
Limited ([Earnmill |) 2z & & & * Earnmill &
—Z [ Kiteway Assets Limited ([ Kiteway J)
K TTNB Profits Limited ([TTNBJ)F##4
Z/A7F - W Kiteway X TTNB 8D B & E =
BrAFHTREBEERLEL2EHRE °

BEZBLRKFMHLIRBEaNmIl 2EE -

HE-Z-—RAF=A=+—Hi - A2FZE
TS A 1,437,195,029 % ©
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Notes:

1. Such shares included the 25,732,000 shares which are jointly owned
by Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

The 37,877,118 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill Holdings
Limited (“Earnmill”), a company which is owned by Kiteway Assets
Limited (“Kiteway”) and TTNB Profits Limited (“TTNB”) in equal shares.
Kiteway and TTNB in turn are wholly owned by Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively.

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP, is also a director of Earnmill.

The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March
2015 was 1,437,195,029 shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors or their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in
the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme
during the year and up to the date of this report.
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EEBAROAES < HEF DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES
RARISEMEMERAT - WBAF K At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
[B] Z B B A B B 2N 4F 1A 4 f] B P AR JER 4 holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
HAEMZE - MLERAFEREALRRA] a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
SHEMEABRB RO IESFMER ° acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
EEREHNzER DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
REAN BEREENEMNAEEFHE No Directors had a material interest, either directly or
BREZSH(HARARQA] - HERE indirectly, in any contract of significances to the business
BAa - MEARSKRI RN B AR A%  of the Group which the Company, or any of its holding
HHEESEEEEEAFE - companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
%E - HERBEEARATZ LT PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
w2 COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
KRR REEAHMNBARREE - Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
—hF=A=1+—"HBIEZHBFEAH purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
4;5%%: &k BB Bl A QA RE ETE Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
FERRE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
BREXEEEBETESE 2RI B At 31 March 2015, the register of substantial shareholders
—E-hF=A=+—H REAXQF kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
BEAENMPEERPIEI6CIKEMTFELZEE shows that other than the interests disclosed above in
REZMEAESH - TIHREGHEERRD respect of certain Directors, the following Shareholder
Al B AN A A2 BT AR AR R R & AR had notified the Company of relevant interests and short
B positions in the issued share capital of the Company:
FriFZER e BT
IRER & RGOHAE (F8) BRAZB D
Number of ordinary
shares held % of issued
Name of Shareholder (long position) share capital
B EBIERER A A 745,598,727 51.88
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited
WX E 745,598,727 51.88
Chi Wen Fu
Mingxin Developments Limited 745,598,727 51.88
New Bright Group Limited 745,598,727 51.88
RER 72,609,118 5.05
Tam Wai Tong
S 71,909,118 5.00
Mui Kai Wai
BER 71,909,118 5.00
Tam Wai Ho
Hat Note:
ERERE PV [ EEEA 2 RAES | FIEEEE The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests in Securities”
A o disclosed above.
MR EXFIIREEN RZE—RFE=H Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the
=+—H AN AIEEEETE AT Company had not been notified by any persons who had
SRR ANFIERDSBERD R ESGIREE interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
BENHEERMBRARNGIWE Z#Ez shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
SORE the Company under the SFO.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, as at the latest practical date
prior to the printing of this report.

AUDITORS

There has been no change in the auditors of the
Company during the past three years. Ernst & Young will
retire and the Company will propose a resolution at its
forthcoming AGM to reappoint Ernst & Young as auditors
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Mr. Shum Sai Chit
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 June 2015
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To the shareholders of Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
35 to 134, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2015
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FeRarEM2EITAR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE—T—AF=A=+—HLIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

—EB-Rf —ZE—F
. 2015 2014
P 2 FET FHAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
g A REVENUE 5 223,933 349,382
SHERK AR Cost of sales (180,176) (280,981)
EF 3 Gross profit 43,757 68,401
HAan A R - F58 Other income and gains, net 5 11,896 10,915
HERDHX Selling and distribution expenses (34,378) (37,606)
TRE Administrative expenses (71,203) (79,211)
B EE s Research and development expenses (30,567) (41,178)
Hi = - B8 Other operating expenses, net (30,040) (7,542)
R &R AR ) Finance costs 7 (998) (574)
EhaE AR REE Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 1,029 6
BAIE R LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (110,504) (86,789)
BIES H Income tax expense 10 (13) (16)
rEERFE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (110,517) (86,805)
2 ERA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EREENSIES Other comprehensive income to
BRnEMEE be reclassified to profit or loss in
LONE \ subsequent periods:
TEBINEBZER Exchange differences on translation
= of foreign operations (1,228) (2,002)
AEE2ARBLE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (111,745) (88,807)
FEIEEE ¢ Loss attributable to:
RARIRIERA A Equity holders of the Company 11 (107,460) (80,409)
LS Non-controlling interests (3,057) (6,396)
(110,517) (86,805)
EIEREERESE Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
AARIBRERE A Equity holders of the Company (108,688) (82,411)
LSl Non-controlling interests (3,057) (6,396)
(111,745) (88,807)
FRAEBRERESEA LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EBiEERER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
EARGE) Basic (HK cents) 13 (8.81L cents)  (6.71l cents)
5 (L) Diluted (HK cents) 13 (8.81L cents)  (6.71lli cents)

BRARE ZFBHNMBRERME 12

Details of the dividend are disclosed in note 12 to the financial
statements.
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FEMBERAE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—E—AF=HA=+—H 31 March 2015

—EB-HE —TNWF
2015 2014
B aE FET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - WE N &S Property, plant and equipment 14 128,465 133,106
TEfT T AH E AR Prepaid land lease payments 15 16,176 16,669
EREF A Deferred development costs 16 1,135 506
BERNAIZEE Investments in joint ventures 18 3,363 8,834
BN ZIRE Investments in associates 19 22 -
AMEHERE Available-for-sale investments 20 7,300 31,199
RHZS Long term deposits 21 55 52
IERENE EBTE Total non-current assets 156,516 190,366
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
rE Inventories 22 35,531 47,039
JEWE 5 BRFK Trade receivables 23 21,121 43,587
TERHIE - Be Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
o fE W BR X receivables 24 12,063 28,167
B E B RAIERK Amounts due from joint ventures 18 1,201 401
JIE W Bt i 2 R BR X Amounts due from associates 19 - 5,734
[ SR ER N Pledged deposits 25 1,012 1,001
RekRLFEEE Cash and cash equivalents 25 112,052 33,496
MENE AR Total current assets 182,980 159,425
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JETE ZERK Trade payables 26 18,053 40,145
H @K REFAE Other payables and accruals 27 38,124 35,197
MERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 27,781 23,814
Bl Provision 29 1,667 1,573
FEft—BEB A A —3E#EHl  Due to a non-controlling shareholder
AR R AR X of a subsidiary 30 2,002 2,002
FETFE SR Tax payable 129 130
mENE B Total current liabilities 87,756 102,861
RBEEZFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 95,224 56,564
BREERRBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 251,740 246,930
g'ElﬁEEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
REER Loan from a shareholder 31 42,000 —
BEFRE Net assets 209,740 246,930
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
—Z—hF=H=+—H 31 March 2015

—B-HE —TNOF

2015 2014
B st FExT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B #E EQUITY
ERATREREA Equity attributable to equity
PEAG AR A holders of the Company
B BITIRA Issued capital 33 143,719 119,766
G Reserves 34(a) 72,592 130,743
216,311 250,509
IS Non-controlling interests (6,571) (3,579)
IR A R Total equity 209,740 246,930
it MmEZ L+
Mr. Shum Sai Chit Ms. Chi Bi Fen
EF EF
Director Director
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FeHaEnE

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

HE—_FT—AF=HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

KAARRREAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B Rt EkER EXT
B&  HEEF i GHER  EpER B REX gt FEREE  REEE
Share Capital Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  redemption Special Other  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests equity
it Thn Tin T TR Thn Tin Tin Thn Tin Tin
Note HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
(3t 34(a))
(note 34(a))
HN=F-=£mA-A At1 April 2013 119,766 409,710 419 (60,819) 4713 5559 (196995 33239 3345 36,737
FEEE Loss for the year - - - - - - (80,409) (80,409) (6,3%) (86,806)
FEANARER Other comprehensive loss for
the year:
TERNSHES Exchange differences on
G ] franslafion of foreign
operations - - - - - (2,002) - (2,002) - (2,002)
EERAFRLE Total compreensive loss for
the year - - - - - (2,002) (80,409) (82.411) (6,3%) (88.807)
W aRER Acquisiton of non-controllng
interests - - - - 528 - - 528 (528) -
RZE-MEZA=1-R A 31 March 2014 and at
RZEF-REMA-A 1 April 2014 119,766 409,710 49 (60,819) 5,241 53,5% (277.404) 250,509 (3579) 246,930
FERE Loss for the year - - - - - - (107460)  (107460) (3057 (10517)
ERAfpEEE: Other comprehensive loss for
the year:
i i) Exchange differences on
=8 {ransfation of foreign
operations - - - - - (1.228) - (1,228) - (1.228)
EREmARAE Total comprefiensive oss for
the year - - - - - (128 (lorde0)  (f0gees)  (3057)  (111749)
Wik Acquisiton of non-controling
interests - - - - (65) - - (65) 65 -
Eiki Issue of shares 8 2953 52,697 - - - - - 76,650 - 76,650
RihERR Share issue expenses 3 - (2,09) - - - - - (2,095 - (2,095)
RZF-REZA=T-H  At31 March 2015 143719 460,312 49 (60819) 5176 52368 (364,864) 216,311 (6571) 209740

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$72,592,000 (2014: HK$130,743,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

* hERHERBEREE MBI E 2R A FHE .
72,592,000/ 7T (= F — I 4 : 130,743,000
AIT) ©
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HFEBaigER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE—T—AF=A=+—HLIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

—E-R% —T-nmF
2015 2014
B st FExT FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
REXBZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
FiRIES1E Loss before tax (110,504) (86,789)
FEE - Adjustments for:
A& B Finance costs 7 998 574
FE1HE &R REN & Share of profits and losses of joint
&8 ventures (1,029) (6)
RITAE A Bank interest income 5 (89) (136)
HEWE BEKEKE (Gain)/loss on disposal of items of
B H 2z (W), /B8 property, plant and equipment 5 (2) 479
ne Depreciation 6 10,908 11,258
AT ERE 2 Recognition of prepaid land lease
R payments 6 493 493
iR 7 B P AN B Amortisation of deferred
development costs 6 571 436
EER B AR E Impairment of deferred
development costs 6 362 -
Al SR ERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments 6 14,755 5226
I ERE Provision of slow moving
inventories 6 13,679 9,532
JEWE 5 BRFRE Impairment of trade receivables 6 4,064 1,720
e RENFIERE Impairment of deposits and
prepayments 6 - 1,425
H R BRFORE - Impairment of other receivables,
R net 6 6,543 8,000
BENARERE Impairment of an investment in a
joint venture 6 6,500 -
FEU — Bt & A FIBRFORME  Impairment of an amount due from
an associate 6 7,225 1,174
fEU —Bt & N RIBRFURE  Reversal of impairment of an
o amount due from an associate 6 - (283)
HE—RHHERE Loss on disposal of an available-
B8 for-sale investment 6 6 —
HEME ARz K Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 (280) -
(45,800) (46,897)
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HeEBeaRER(E)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

—E-RF —_T—mF

2015 2014

ks FER FAT

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

FEGEMm), R (Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,414) 8,750

JEWE 5 BRFOR Decrease in trade receivables 17,875 10,236
JERTFIE - & MEME  Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

WRIER A, (35 0) deposits and other receivables 7,982 (888)
REES i"i]l] Increase in long-term deposits (3) -
JEWE & R R FIBE N Increase in amounts due from joint

ventures (803) (206)
JE WS Bg 2 ) RIS BN Increase in amounts due from

associates - (8,297)
e 8B 5 RFOR S Decrease in trade payables (22,085) (3,222)
Hi e ZB R EMbEsT  Increase in other payables and

BEHEM accruals 3,419 4,621

2= IR B RBEE I, (R4 Increase/(decrease) in provision for

product warranties 132 (445)
REXBHER R ® Cash used in operations (41,697) (31,348)
Eﬁxtﬁl\mlﬁ Overseas taxes paid (14) (15)
BRI IS RHERE  Net cash flows used in operating

activities (41,711) (31,363)
REXBHAITRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
MEHA Interest received 89 136
BAME  BFEREE Purchases of items of property,

THH plant and equipment 14 (6,330) (19,638)
HEME - BB &&RE Proceeds from disposal of items of

HB Z TS I8 property, plant and equipment 38 677
& — Al HeEEE Y Proceeds from disposal of an

FriS I8 available-for-sale investment 9,138 =
HEMBA Disposals of subsidiaries 35 (176) —
HHNE Lﬁ'ﬂ?‘)ﬂiﬁ Additions to deferred development

costs 16 (1,566) (355)
KRE—&ERA Investment in a joint venture - (19)
EW—AEARIBRZIEI  Increase in an amount due from
a joint venture - (606)
BEEBZRERA Net cash flows from/(used in)
(fEH)F88 investing activities 1,193 (19,805)
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HeEBeaRER(E)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HE—T—RAF=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

—B-HE —TWF

2015 2014
B st FExT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BT ISR Proceeds from issue of shares 76,650 —
AP BEITR Share issue expenses (2,095) -
BE B Finance costs (998) (574)
FILIRITE R New bank loans 27,781 23,814
BERITERK Repayment of bank loans (23,814) (20,000)
— R REE LM Increase in loan from a shareholder 42,000 —
FEN—PMtB AT —3E#EH]  Increase in an amount due to a non-
PR ER AR FRIE N controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary - 2,002
MEEKEZBESMRAFRE  Net cash flows from financing
activities 119,524 5,242
ReRREZEEERAZ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
'/ ORd) B CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 79,006 (45,926)
FYzBHekREeEE Cash and cash equivalents at
HH beginning of year 34,497 80,782
HNMEGE SRR L - BB Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (439) (359)
FRZBERATEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
EHAB AT END OF YEAR 113,064 34,497
RekBRELEEER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
RO CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REABBANNKFIERZ  Cash and cash equivalents as stated
ReRASZFMEERE in the consolidated statement of
financial position 25 112,052 33,496
BARBIR=FHARA Time deposits with original maturity
B2 EHRTF K of less three months when
P A IRITE K acquired, pledged as security for
K a bank loan 25 1,012 1,001
RiFBIMEREXRYIFEZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated
ReRAESZFEER in the consolidated statement of
cash flows 113,064 34,497
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MERAE
Statement of Financial Position
HE_T—HF=H=1T—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

—E-RF —_T—mF
2015 2014
B 5 THET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
WEB AR Z&E Investments in subsidiaries 17 - 442,266
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JrE U BT /B R RIBR 3R Due from subsidiaries 17 134,406 3,000
B FROE Prepayments 24 320 290
H& RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 25 76,750 101
MENEELRRR Total current assets 211,476 3,391
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HibhpEfzERETBE  Other payables and accruals 27 2,031 405
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 209,445 2,986
EEHREBERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 209,445 445 252
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FETBT B A BIBR X Due to subsidiaries 17 - 198,578
BEFE Net assets 209,445 246,674
fi% 1 EQUITY
EBITRA Issued capital 33 143,719 119,766
1 Reserves 34(b) 65,726 126,908
AR HE 4R EE Total equity 209,445 246,674
R v MmEF L+
Mr. Shum Sai Chit Ms. Chi Bi Fen
EBEZE =
Director Director
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Notes to Financial Statements
HE—T—AF=A=+—HLIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located
at Unit 2606A, 26/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of original design manufacturing
products (“ODM products”), electronic dictionary
products and personal communication products, and
the provision of electronic manufacturing services.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Ming Xin Development
Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands
and the ultimate holding company is Alpha Sino Limited,
a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which because the Company
has not early adopted the revised Listing Rules issued
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, are those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE-_T—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

21 RBEE(E) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE—T—RAF=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

228 R KE 2B
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretation for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS 2
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition’

Accounting for Contingent

Consideration in a Business
Combination’

Short-term Receivables and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

! Effective from 1 July 2014
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Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only
relevant to an entity’s first HKFRS financial statements,

nature and the impact of each amendment and

interpretation is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to
HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group as the Company does not
qualify as an investment entity as defined in HKFRS
10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which
apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not have any
offsetting arrangement.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting
in situations where over-the-counter derivatives
designated in hedging relationships are directly
or indirectly, novated to a central counterparty
as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations. For continuance
of hedge accounting under this exception, all of
the following criteria must be met: (i) the novations
must arise as a consequence of laws or regulations,
or the introduction of laws or regulations; (ii) the
parties to the hedging instrument agree that one or
more clearing counterparties replace their original
counterparty to become the new counterparty
to each of the parties; and (iii) the novations do
not result in changes to the terms of the original
derivative other than changes directly attributable to
the change in counterparty to achieve clearing. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Group has not novated any derivatives during
the current and prior years.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises
a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation,
occurs. The interpretation also clarifies that a levy
liability is accrued progressively only if the activity
that triggers payment occurs over a period of time,
in accordance with the relevant legislation. For a
levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum
threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability
should be recognised before the specified minimum
threshold is reached. The interpretation has had
no impact on the Group as the Group applied, in
prior years, the recognition principles under HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets which for the levies incurred by the Group
are consistent with the requirements of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21.
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The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues
relating to the definitions of performance and
service conditions which are vesting conditions,
including (i) a performance condition must contain a
service condition; (ii) a performance target must be
met while the counterparty is rendering service; (iii)
a performance target may relate to the operations
or activities of an entity, or to those of another entity
in the same group; (iv) a performance condition
may be a market or non-market condition; and (v) if
the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases
to provide service during the vesting period, the
service condition is not satisfied. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a business
combination that are not classified as equity should
be subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss whether or not they fall within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest
rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)
Annual Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

1

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation
Exception’

Accounting for Acqui S/t ions of Interests
in Joint Operations®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements’

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application and is not yet in a position to state
whether they would have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the amendments to the Listing Rules issued
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange relating to the
disclosure of financial information with reference to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will affect
the presentation and disclosure of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 March 2016. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment by the impact of these changes.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or
joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit and
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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2QABERETHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
ERMEEREB(S) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
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An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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2QABERETHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease

buildings terms and 2%
Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture, fixtures 25%

and equipment
Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Toolings and moulds 50%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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24E RS BERBME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
BEEE(FTBEBERE)(8) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)
WRERBEEEAE Research and development costs
FTEMERAREEREEBZAN All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
bR © incurred.
M ERBREEECEBEIESE L Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
Xt RBEEASEFERERM LT products is capitalised and deferred only when the
LASERR T B E W 2 B & ] {5 Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
AstE BETKIEE RBENFE completing the intangible asset so that it will be
A EEE « BEINAEERKL available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
Bz - AR EIRATTIE R MEE its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
EEEEERPH IR 7% generate future economic benefits, the availability
FTERNIELERIE - HEMMAZES H of resources to complete the project and the ability
FEA Fatigs o BIREARL|ES to measure reliably the expenditure during the
e development. Product development expenditure which

does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

3R SE 7 B B AN AR B AN IR (DR B B 1B Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
SIEE - WHEGFHBEADELEEE impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
HRZEFAERNEEFH=FUE line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
RROEBEEH o products of three years, commencing from the date

when the products are put into commercial production.

HE Leases

NEBEEHEBRCETEMAERIN) Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
BAEMMOHRERARERFRNEE 2H risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
ENYARMEHE BEREEK legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
B HEEEERREENE2ZRE inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
BERAEKRAE  WERBBE(TEIE is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
B )—HFABR - DA R aZ B B8 B gt payments and recorded together with the obligation,
B -LARBEHESIABEZEE(R excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
FREME z BN LB EREE) R and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
YN - MR NERIEBIEE R IIER - Wik leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
HEHRABEZEE 2 HT A EAER finance leases, are included in property, plant and
WEZHPREERRTE - LilifEE equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
ZREXRAREBEEFHR  LEER lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
B4 HA 4 [E] 7E 48 HA 52 8 R HR The finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or

loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

NREME BN RENBAZEE Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
FIVERLEME - W5t A FE financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
E - but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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2QABEREHHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
HEWE) Leases (continued)
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Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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24ERETHEBE(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

RERHMEBERE(E)

B R iR

BN YRR A B E 3 F] EE
RERBHIRRMIS LREZIFITE
TREE - Tt ER  HWFEEEIN
7 PR B B R 2R R i 5 X AR AT AT
BERETE - BHAAEHERWE
2 TR SR BRAE - WAt A
JBEFR AR AR B 2 B A SAAN -
B RN R 8 55 B 1R 18 s Y B 75 I
A o BEELENEED R RN B
Qiﬁ%ﬂZ%ﬁiﬁﬁX$&F§H&ﬂEﬁ2ﬁ@

AHHESRMRE
AEHESRIRER ETRIEETR
BREBESFIFNTESTRMEE ° 7
BAAHEENRERERED R
REFBEEE - MEETEREAFEL
AR BERE - SRBINER
EFRERRA B EERRN L
AIRERSE ST EKERT SRR
HERmMHES

R TERE - A ESRREN
NHEETTREE - EREREE
AR AHEESRRESHFHE
AR 2K - EE2RE A IEFER
RIE(ER - 2t BB EET
RREMBR)REEREREER
WA AL (ER - Rt BB HH
EREEMHEEEN DB BamHE
) - JHAAHEESRIKER
BHE MR TID B2 HRAF BUWA
KRB WA - SEARIE T SR EL T WA
R | 2 BURMN Ba AR A E MUK
A e

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss
in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2QABEREHHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2QABEREHHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
SREERE Impairment of financial assets
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’'s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, and shareholder’s loan.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

S (ER)ARAT » 2015BFHRE 71



A %5 80 R P &E (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
T—RFE=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHE—

2.4

EXRSTTBERBEGE)
LN

H&)\EBA—J EB BN AR AL
B R\ BE T S B R 5 B
A

(a) REMLER  HEHEAELIE
[\ g2 K [l a2 15 = B 5K A B
WEAEBEATNBRITHEE R
sk ERNEEEmER
Y

(b) BRAE UL A - FA1R 44 FR 5 14
BiR

(c) MEWA @ REFTEEFRER
MEZE - U Eem T AEF
Hg B e R (E#ER) 2 s 8
éﬁi@ﬁ%ﬁx%iﬂﬁ%%

/?1EZHZ—'—H =5

EEEF
RKESEE
N BIARIR 58 Bl ME AR B AT SR PIR
N —IRFRE R R B ATE R RIK
XaailJquilJ(Hﬁ* &l BFA
BESEUESH 8 - HRILEE R
AFrE&HETADLETLRERE
T EITRINTE N EREEERR
% - BB ST EIC EELAEER
HBEENHERE  A—BYEEZ
ESHAE - ERBREDS T -
EEIEI@EMH SEHEBENERRT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2QABERETHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
ShiE(48) Foreign currencies (continued)
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Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
A change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the
discount rate applied will result in an adjustment to the
estimated impairment provision previously made.
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3. EEGRAE(E)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Impairment of items of property, plant and
equipment and available-for-sale financial
assets carried at cost

Management estimates the recoverable amounts of
items of property, plant and equipment and available-
for-sale investments carried at cost when an indication
of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated
loss arising from the inability of its customers to make
the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances,
customers’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of its customers
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance
and its future results would be affected.

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two years on
certain products and undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant
judgement is required when determining the warranty
expenses. The Group estimates the warranty expenses
based on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24 months.
Where the warranty expenses incurred are different
from the original provision, the difference would impact
on profit or loss in the period in which the additional
warranty expenses are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
these transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining
the amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied
and the expected period of benefits.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the personal communication products segment
designs, manufactures and sells a range of
communication products;

(b) the strategic products segment designs,
manufactures and sells ODM products and
electronic dictionary products and provides
electronic manufacturing services; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises

corporate income, expenses, asset and liability
items related to the Group’s investment activities.
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EBRoBER(E)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except that
interest income, finance costs, dividend income as well
as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from
associates and joint ventures, pledged deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings, an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, a loan from a shareholder,
tax payable and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the prevailing market prices.

78 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015



A 35 80 R BARE (48

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE—T—RAF=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

4. EBRFER(GE)

AARRER RBER BERHH g
Personal
communication Strategic Corporate
products products and others Total
ThL THT THn Thn
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z-TF=B=1-RALFE Yearended 31 March 2015
ARUA Segment revenue:
HETHREP Sales to external customers 67,914 156,019 - 223,933
AERE Segment results (29,677) (48,261) (2,926) (80,864)
- Reconciliation:
FIBHA Interest income 89
HEMBARRA Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 280
BEKE Finance costs (998)
—RENARENE Impairment of investment in a joint venture (6,500)
HEMRHERER(E Impairment of an available-for-sale investment (14,755)
HE-FHEREER Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale investment (6)
EUH-BEAFENAE Impairment of an amount due from an associate (7,225)
EMENGERE T8 Impairment of other receivables, net (1,554)
ElERERARNRER Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 1,029
HaEE Loss before tax (110,504)
ﬁﬁ’ﬁE Segment assets 51,322 160,145 3,079 214,546
Eif Reconciliation:

PHEE Unallocated assets 124,950
B2E Total assets 339,496
n QEF Segment liabilities 16,296 39,516 2,032 57,844

Reconciliation:

?&_’é Unallocated Tiabiltes 71912
ek Total liabiliies 129,756
HttpRER Other segment information:

MEREH Depreciation and amortisation 1,267 9,597 1,108 11,972
RS AR E Impairment of deferred development cost - 362 - 362
EAREY Capital expenditure 2,368 2,361 3,167 7,896
HENF - WFERREEE Lossf(gain) on disposal of items of property,

BB/ (hs) 58 plant and equipment, net 2 (4) - 2)
%iﬁﬁﬁ@% Provision of slow moving inventories 2,101 11,578 - 13,679
EnRERR Product warranty provision 322 133 - 455
B 5B Impairment of trade receivables 5 4,059 - 4,064
Hib WS AE - ¥ Impairment of other receivables, net 2,839 2,150 - 4,989

BEARXBRRNENE  HERRER *
RIEFIBERAS o

equipment and deferred development costs.

20 (BB ) BRAR » 2015 BFRE

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
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4. ¥BoBER(E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

AAERER REER EEREM g
Personal
communication Strategic Corporate
products products and others Total
Th Thr Tin TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z-ME=B=1-RLEE Year ended 31 March 2014
AEUA Segment revenue:
HETIMER Sales to external customers 78,158 271024 - 349,382
PEXE Segment results (36,308) (42,168) (339) (78,815)
% Reconciliation:
FISHA Interest income 136
BEKE Finance costs (574)
ER-Be R KA Impairment of an amount due from an associate (1.174)
mENHELERERE Impairment of available-for-sale investments (6,226)
Be REAFERE Impairment of deposits and prepayments (1,425)
Eh—%ELNAERERE Reversal of impairment of an amount due from an
associate 283
EERTIRER : EA7 Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 6
HAEE Loss before tax (86,789)
AREE Segment assets 53,564 214,851 711 269,126
- Reconciliation:
AREE Unallocated assets 80,665
BEE Total assets 349,791
yox -1 Segment liabilities 16,751 59,759 405 76,915
# - Reconciliation:
kAR Unallocated liabilties 25,946
Bak Total liabilities 102,861
HbAEEH Other segment information:
MEREH Depreciation and amortisation 2451 9,117 619 12,187
BARX Capital expenditure 3,007 16,986 - 19,993"
HWENF - BFERREEE Lossf(gain) on disposal of items of property,

BB/ (h&) 58 plant and equipment, net (579) (113) 213 (479)
HRGEEZIERFENEE Provision of slow moving inventories 3,704 5,828 - 9,532
EnRERE Product warranty provision 587 170 - 757
EmRERELR Reversal of product warranty provision - (400) - (400)
B AR A E Impairment of trade receivables - 1,720 - 1720
Eth RN E Impairment of other receivables, net 3,508 4492 - 8,000
* BARTBEAENE BERZER * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
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4. EBRFER(GE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

wEER Geographical information
(a) REIREBEFEZKWA (a) Revenue from external customers
—B-HF —TWF
2015 2014
FTHExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR Japan 123,347 189,522
BB Hong Kong 46,826 82,332
R Middle East 5,007 27,934
= Taiwan 7,376 14,338
B Europe 15,967 15,391
i Vietnam 16 32
hE R Mainland China
(BBBRIN) (other than Hong Kong) 16,944 3,952
JE3=M North America 2,411 2,128
HA Others 6,039 13,753
223,933 349,382

bt 2 WA B RRIEE P AT

FEH o
(b) RBEE

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

The revenue information above is based on the

—E—-F1F —E—pUe
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

PR B A 3 Mainland China
(BBBRIN) (other than Hong Kong) 138,856 151,015
BB Hong Kong 10,300 8,038
Hp Others 60 114
149,216 159,167

b2 ERBEEEF ZREE
EMMEM  ffHERER
BN o

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes available-
for-sale investments.
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4. ¥ EERGE) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
FEEFEH Information about major customers
REZSEERZPZIWA - HERIEA Revenue from each of the major customers, which
EEWAZ10% KA ESEFIAT - individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue, is set out below:
“E-RF
2015
BABRER KBER L
Personal
communication Strategic
products products Total
TR TERT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ZFA Customer A - 22,559 22,559
—T-mEF
2014
{EABREm REEmM k]
Personal
communication Strategic
products products Total
TET TET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZFA Customer A - 39,352 39,352
ZFB Customer B - 49,316 49,316
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5. IKA >~ HittIi AR Wz - F5E 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET
WARERANEEN LR - BIARF Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
WELEEMMNEZREEFHEMER the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
BRZZITHHOEHE - for returns and trade discounts during the year.
WA~ E AU A K W 25 05 B8 5 4T 40 An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is
T e as follows:
—FE-RF —ZT—HEF
2015 2014
ihEzs FET FAET
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
WA Revenue
HESD Sale of goods 223,933 349,382
Hlr A Other income
RITH B WA Bank interest income 89 136
AR 7% & A Service fee income 2,228 1,771
HA Others 9,297 9,487
11,614 11,394
HipUrzk (E548) - 7% Other gains/(losses), net
HEWE  BEK Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of
HEEE 2 W property, plant and equipment
(E18) 2 (479)
HEMB AWK Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 35 280 —
282 (479)
11,896 10,915
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6. BAIEE 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX
AEBZHATEBEBENR GIA)T The Group'’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
IIE=SI=RE (crediting):
rEH
Group
—E-RF —T-OF
2015 2014
Bt aE FET FAET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
EHFERAR" Cost of inventories sold” 166,497 271,449
e Depreciation 14 10,908 11,258
TAREERE 2 ER Recognition of prepaid lease
payments 15 493 493
R R Research and development
expenses:
B 2 IRE R BN Deferred development costs
amortised 16 571 436
EEFRZE K ARIE Impairment of deferred
development costs 16 362 -
REERX Current year expenditure 29,634 40,742
30,567 41,178
BT REFEELEHEE  Minimum lease payments under
NREREX R operating leases in respect of
land and buildings 7,463 10,130
= E AN BN & Auditors’ remuneration 1,140 1,100
EERMAX Employee benefit expense
(BIEEEH: (including directors’
(ffzE8)) : remuneration (note 8)):
BN R B = Wages and salaries
and benefits in kind 112,504 137,012
IRRETEIH R Pension scheme contributions 6,119 6,324
118,623 143,336
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6. BiATEE(E)

AEBEZBATEBEERNRGTA)T

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

518 - (&) (crediting): (continued)
rEE
Group
—E-HF —T-NF
2015 2014
BEE THET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
PEH =% - F5E Foreign exchange differences,
net 1,135 234
WETERE" Provision of slow moving
inventories” 13,679 9,532
EmRBRE Product warranty provision 29 455 757
HEMHEEREEE*  Loss on disposal of an available-
for-sale investment* 6 =
BERR—KRERE" Impairment of an investment in a
joint venture* 18 6,500 -
Al B ERERIE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments® 20 14,755 5,226
JEUT — B E A BIBRZOMIE *  Impairment of an amount due
from an associate* 19 7,225 1,174
JEU —Et 2 N RIBRFURME  Reversal of impairment of an
o~ amount due from an associate* 19 - (283)
U E ZERFRE ** Impairment of trade
receivables** 23 4,064 1,720
Ze RBRNFIERE" Impairment of deposits and
prepayments® 24 - 1,425
H b e I BR FORE - Impairment of other receivables,
R net*** 24 6,543 8,000
OB ERGEBRRREMEERAZ * Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit
[SHERAIH o or loss and other comprehensive income.
* BERGEERRRAMEERARZ * Included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the consolidated
fﬁﬁﬂ%&%ﬁﬁ REE] o statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
x> @%B’\i? BamRAEMEERARY Z ** Included in “Selling and distribution expenses” in the
[SHERDHZ L] consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
Income.
> FRIE S P& 1,554,000 % 7T & 4,989,000 =+ Amounts of HK$1,554,000 and HK$4,989,000 were included in

BREZHRAEA BN EaEaRE
fEEBRARSP Z[HMEE L
R TES H IRIBZ A -

“Other operating expenses, net”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

and “Administrative expense”

comprehensive income, respectively.
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=59 7. FINANCE COSTS
rEH
Group
—E-RF —ZT—HEF
2015 2014
FTERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REFENEHEEZ Interest on bank borrowings wholly
RITEEF S repayable within five years 998 574
EENSREEAEME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

RBEBBHMAZSFTAR AR ERE
HEmMRAT EMRA D RATES
NEMEBI(E32F)FE 16116 BT

REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

BEFNESHMESOT Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and section 161 of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32), is as follows:
rEH
Group
—F-RF —T—mF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
we Fees 512 506
Emie - Other emoluments:
e EMEREYHE Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 9,142 9,084
ERITE 2 B Performance-related incentive
payments - 200
RIRET B K Pension scheme contributions 264 264
9,406 9,548
9,918 10,054
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8. EEREAREEBAEME(E)

(a) BYFHTES
ERAFERNRBILIFNTEES

REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

The fees paid to independent non-executive

ML mT - directors during the year were as follows:
—B-HF —T-NF
2015 2014
FTERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AoKE Yung Wing Ki, Samuel

IREFIEE  REBBHE - SBS, MH, JP*

RFat~ - 56
fa] B X * Ho Kwok Shing, Harris* - 32
F®x* Wong Kon Man, Jason* 128 128
eheda Fung, Henry* 128 91
FRE Li Chi Kwong* 128 71
BB IR > Kwong Ping Man** - -
oK AN Cheung Sound Poon** - _
eR Al > Chen Gang** - -

384 378

RAFAIL EFFIFATE
EXNEMME(ZFT—HF -

) o

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2014: Nil).

* IR AR St £ e Aok 7 £ B BHEA & Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel,

REBIIERTES » DHR_-F
—=FtA-RAR-ZE—=FhA
TBHAER - EHNEE - HKE
FERFENREEEREARRE
MHFRTEE RN -_T-AF=H

ZHREER -

resigned as independent non-executive directors of the
Company with effect from 1 July 2013 and 11 September
2013, respectively. Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason, Mr. Fung,
Henry, and Mr. Li Chi Kwong resigned as independent non-
executive directors of the Company with effect from 26
March 2015.

> BRI AE - RE AN A RBRRAISE ** Mr. Kwong Ping Man, Mr. Cheung Sound Poon, and Mr.

EEBZERARRANREBILIE
BITEE R_ZE—AF=AAH

BERL @

S (BBR)BRAT » 2015 BEFRE

Chen Gang were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company with effect from 5 March 2015.
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8. EENENEEAEMES(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(D) EITEERFHITES (b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors

e BR 8RR BRUGE

e BENRE  AfzRe #R ame
Salaries, Performance-
allowances related Pension
and benefits incentive scheme Total
Fees inkind  payments contributions remuneration

TER TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

—E-If 2015
HIEE: Executive directors:
BEFATHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP* - 2,786 - 60 2,846
EEE' Tam Wai Tong, Thomas" - 2,756 - 60 2,816
Bieg’ Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian" - 592 - 27 619
AAME" Kazuhiro Otani" - 1,826 - 63 1,889
St Lee Koon Hung" - 1,182 - 54 1,236
LR Shum Sai Kit * - - - - -
HEF Chi Bi Fen"" - - - _ _
- 9,142 - 264 9,406
FaaES: Non-executive directors:
ERAY Luk Chui Yung, Judith® 128 - - - 128
g Meng Jian*** - - - - -
BRFATHL" Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP* - - - - -
128 9,142 - 264 9,534
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8. EEREREEAEME(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(D)HTESRIHTES(E)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)

g 2R 8RB RiGHE

ik ENflE B Re f# ame
Salaries, Performance-
allowances related Pension
and benefits incentive scheme Total
Fees in kind payments contributions remuneration

TRT TAT TRT TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“EF-QNF 2014
RITES Executive directors:
ERFATHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP* - 2774 - 60 2,834
Ex' Tam Wai Tong, Thomas" - 2,730 - 60 2,790
ZigEs' Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian" - 592 - 27 619
ARME" Kazuhiro Otani" - 1,807 - 63 1870
i’ Lee Koon Hung' - 1,181 - 54 1,235
ERRY Luk Chui Yung, Judith® - - 200 = 200
- 9,084 200 264 9,548
FRTES Non-executive director:
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith™ 128 - - - 128
128 9,084 200 264 9,676

' OBRREEERZ-ZZ-—RF=RA
ZHRBRERFERTES -

ORI LLITRN_ZT—ARF=ZA
ZHNBEEERTES - HEE
—E-NE=ZA=+—HIFEZ
NS R - #9200,000 78 7T A EH
RIRTZ RIBHE 2 8% o

" EEREE EBERELL AR
MEEERFBELEERBERD
RIZHITES R=ZE—HF=A
iy N =L

##

Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson was re-designated as a non-
executive director on 26 March 2015.

Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith resigned as a non-executive
director on 26 March 2015. Among her total remuneration for
the year ended 31 March 2014, approximately HK$200,000
represented performance-related incentive payments for her
service before the appointment as a non-executive director.

Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian,
Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, and Mr. Lee Koon Hung resigned as
executive directors of the Company with effect from 26
March 2015.
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8. EENRSHREEAEME(HE)

(D)HTESRFHTES(E)

MR EERBBEREEEREE
RARBNTESE - R-F—AF
=ARBAERK-

o RRAEEBERERAAREAT
EE -RNR-_ZT—AF=HABX
R e

RARER » WEEETZERK
ERRBREEMAWNE 2L
(ZZ—HF : &) o

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive

directors (continued)

" Mr. Shum Sai Kit and Mr. Chi Bi Fen were appointed as
executive directors of the Company with effect from 5 March
2015.

Mr. Meng Jian was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 5 March 2015.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2014: Nil).
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9. HEBREHER

REAFRALERSHEERRENS
—T-E:MR)EF A#e
HEEEN EXHIFES - AERHT
—H(ZE—F —R)RSHES

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four (2014: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2014:

RARFIFEEREE  HFaEN one) highest paid employee who is not a director of the
s & Company are as follows:
rEH
Group
—B-RF —F-AF
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e RUREDNS Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 913 913
RIRET S HEEK Pension scheme contributions 17 15
930 928

10. T8 %

2D S RN DB N RIS
ELTAEBERB G - S E
EHEBMNEREG(—F—MOF :
) o EfthihEm 2 FEERFm AL IR T
RIBA SR E R 2 X P 2 BIZK 3 7
FREBREMBRAT RS -

10.INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2014: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

rEH

Group
—E-HF —ZT—NF
2015 2014
FERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

RNEE — Hfbih = Current — Elsewhere

NEZHER Charge for the year 13 16
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10. Fr8 (&)

B A ATE R I AR R R K E B
RABNEEBEAER R E 2 HIAX
HENERBRFE 2HEAL
(BEE) SR - ANERRER(BVEE
BER)EERB R 2 HWERIOT

10.INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.,
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:
rEH
Group
—B-HF —ZT-mF
2015 2014
FHET % FHET %
HK$°000 % HK$’'000 %
i Al B 18 Loss before tax (110,504) (86,789)
WEATEREE Y  Tax at the statutory tax rates
R (20,248) 18.3  (15,391) 17.7
FE(E A& RARLHEA  Profits and losses attributable to
N Eia joint ventures 170 (0.1) 1 —
BARN 2 A Income not subject to tax (3,429) 3.1 (1,411) 1.6
NI Z X H Expenses not deductible for tax 9,971 (9.0) 2,862 (3.3)
RIEHERZ Tax losses not recognised
IR 1R 13,549 (12.3) 13,955 (16.0)
BAREBERIR Tax charge at the Group’s
T8 2 BiIEHBR effective rate 13 - 16 -
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BE

11.

12.

13.

KATRREFEARGEE

HE—_T—hAF=A=+—HLFE
PiN/N Tﬂxﬁéh*ﬁ/\}*mﬁ BEERE
—%EEIJ)@I&/AEEM‘%%&%Z%E
111,784,000 8 T(ZF — M F : &
$6.88,588,000,8 7t) (Fi5E 34(b)) °

Hﬁ z%\

ESEeTERMBE_T O =A
=t—BE-T-—WmWF=A=1+—H
IE 2 FRIRMN RS

NSy 12PN
SREE

ERERAEEDIREARAE R
Hxﬂx%hﬁ/\rﬂmsirtﬂé@ 18
107,460,000 L(Z T — M F : &
Téi80,409,0005%%)&¢WE%§??%
AR hIAE 98 1,219,975,599 I
(_T 04 ¢ 1,197,663,029 A% ) &t

iﬁﬂi

AEEGEHE T -—AF=A=1—
B -ZE-—NF=R=+—HItZF
B EE T AR -

11.

12.

13.

—ZE—AF=H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2015 includes a loss of HK$111,784,000 (2014:
HK$88,588,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the years ended 31 March
2015 and 2014.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$107,460,000
(2014: HK$80,409,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,219,975,599 (2014:
1,197,663,029) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.
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14. 9% - BMERKRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RE Group
HELHRET  HENEEE R SERRE HEREE IERIH g ERIE 2
Leasehold Furniture,
[and and Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Toolings Motor ~ Construction
buildings  improvements equipment machinery and moulds vehicles in progress Total

i Tin T i it 7 T Tin ir7
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000

Z5-BEZAST-A 3 March 2015

R-Z-MEMA-A: At1 April 2014:

Bk Cost 150,133 25,368 85,513 93,218 121915 8,911 497 491,555
ZitfE Accumated depreciaon (33,417 (2437) (60,949 (85,851) (125,359) (8514 - (358,449)
FERE Net carrying amount 116,716 97 4570 7,367 2562 W 497 133,106

W-Z-WERA-B: A1 Apil 2014, net of acoumulated

BABE:E depreciaion 116716 W 4510 137 2562 W W 133,106
AE Additions - 1,582 1,058 603 223 855 - 6,330
KERRNE Depreciaiion provided during the year (3425) (750) (1,002 (3,345) (2,005) (381) - (10,908)
il Disposels - (28) 1) U] - - - (36)
e Transfer 497 - - - - - (497) -
WENBAR (Wikds)  Disposalof subsidiares (note 35) - - (15) - - - - (t)
EX &S Exchange realignment - () U] - - - - (12)
A-%-1% At 81 March 2015, netof accumulated

=R=t-A" depreciafion

BAkEiHE 113,788 1,79 4,603 4618 2,789 87 - 128,465
R-E-1f At 31 March 2015:

=p=t-B:

K Cost 150,630 20,961 78,755 93,640 129,988 782 - 481,794

ZiiE Accumuated depreciaion (%842 (19,165) (14152 w0 (1) (6949) - (353.)

e Net carrying amount 113,788 1,79 4,603 4518 2789 871 - 128,465
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14. Y% - MERRZRE(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
& Group
HETHRET  BEMRRE GRRERRE  HRRER IARIE il ERIE %
Leasehold Fumiture,
[and and Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Toolings Motor Construction
buldings ~ improvements equipment machinery and moulds vehicles in progress Total
TR TERL TR Tén TEL TR TEn TEnL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000

ZE-MEZAZT-B 31 March 2014

R-E-Z£MA-A: At1 April 2013:

Bk Cost 1911 25,036 82,861 96,368 134,161 10194 66,477 494,268

ZirfE Accumulated depreciafion (305%0) (24729) (81,319) (91,122) (131.406) (9,268) - (368,374)
e Net carrying amount 48641 7 1542 5,216 2,75 926 66477 125,804
“3-SERA-H- At 1 Aoril 2013, net of accumulated

Bl ETE depreciaon 15641 W 1542 526 275 7 8477 105,804
A Additions - 1297 4015 6,829 2515 - 4,982 19,638
KERiRIE Depreciation provided during the year (2,887) (562) (966) (4,634) (1,953 (256) - (11,258)
e Disgosel - (#) (13) () (75) ) - [1,156)
e Transfer 70962 - - - - - (70962) -
EXES Exchange realignment - (4 ) . _ 3 N (1)
AoF-mE At 31 March 2014, net of accumulated

=f=t-8" depreciafion

Bk 2atiiE 116,716 ] 4570 7367 2562 37 497 133,106
i1 At 31 March 2014;

=R=1-R:

Bk Cost 160,133 25,368 85,513 93,218 127,915 8,911 497 491,555

2ifirE Accumulated depreciaon (33417) (24371 (80943) (65.851) (125359) (8514) - (358,449)

FmRE Net carrying amount 116,716 997 4570 7,367 2562 397 497 133,106
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14. 913 - BERBRHEH(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
R EHRANEFBRE L NEFT Y The net book values of the Group’s leasehold land and
FREVFESTET - buildings at the end of the reporting period are analysed
as follows:
rEE
Group
—B-RF —F-AF
2015 2014
THET FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
REBZHFHHEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 7,455 7,736
RABERM 2 P EHHEE  Medium term leases in Mainland China 106,333 108,980
113,788 116,716
RZZE—AF=A=+—0 ' &~5HE At 31 March 2015, a building of the Group with a net
—IEBR T FE %) 7,455,000 B T 2 1 carrying amount of approximately HK$7,455,000 (2014:
F(ZZT—WF : 7,736,000 L) HK$7,736,000) was pledged to secure banking facilities
WA B AR E TR ZRITIE granted to the Group (note 28).
gra(MiE28) o
15. B{S LA EFFE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
rEH
Group
—E-HF —ZE—NF
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REERRR ZRAEE Carrying amount at the beginning
of year 17,147 17,640
RAREECHER(ME6) Recognised during the year (note 6) (493) (493)
MN=ZA=+—HZEE®EME Carrying amount at 31 March 16,654 17,147

FIAFERFRIE ~ & &E  Current portion included in
fth FE U BR 3R 2 i B BF prepayments, deposits and

other receivables (478) (478)
JEm BN EB 1D Non-current portion 16,176 16,669
FHE + Az A B A b I LA A0 2F R AR The leasehold lands are held under medium term leases
=e=v= and are situated in Mainland China.

96 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015



A %5 80 R P &E (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE—T—RAF=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

16. IE E B 3% B A< 16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS
rEE
Group
—B-RF —FAF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RFEERBE : At the beginning of year:
[B¥N Cost 39,332 39,013
B 5 Accumulated amortisation (38,826) (38,420)
AREFE Net carrying amount 506 593
RFEERBRZ KA Cost, net of accumulated amortisation, at
B HBR RET S the beginning of year 506 593
#hn — AERRE 3 Additions — internal development 1,566 355
NEF RS (Mfi5E6)  Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (571) (436)
FRRE(KE6) Impairment during the year (note 6) (362) —
[EH &5 Exchange realignment (4) (6)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 1,135 506
R=A=+—8": At 31 March:
DN Cost 40,843 39,332
B 5 Accumulated amortisation (39,708) (38,826)
AREFE Net carrying amount 1,135 506
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17. B AR ZKRE 17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥ /N
Company
—B-RF —FAF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEETHIRE » | Unlisted investments, at cost - 269,256
JE W BT B R RIBR K Due from subsidiaries 182,406 767,266
182,406 1,036,522
o ORE" Less: Impairment” (48,000) (591,256)
134,406 445 266
FE BB A RIBR X Due to subsidiaries - (198,578)

# HRAEBETHERARBESRSE
B EREREE A 182,406,000/ 7T 2
oNENE s S =- 9 D E NS
RBE - RBEFE  ARAEEET
MiEBARFERGEE  CHERED
Al A 269,256,0007 7T K 767,266,000
BITCRIMBRREEIERT) 2K B AR Z
& MWK B A R RRERRE °

B AR 2 REREZESBINT

#

Impairments were recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries
with a carrying amount of HK$182,406,000 during the
year, because certain subsidiaries of the Group have been
making losses persistently. In prior year, impairments were
recognised for investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
from subsidiaries with carrying amounts of HK$269,256,000
and HK$767,266,000 (before deducting the impairment loss),
respectively, because certain subsidiaries of the Group have
been making losses persistently.

The movements in the impairment of investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

b N/NE|

Company
—E-HF —ZE—NF
2015 2014
FERT FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
F9) At the beginning of year 591,256 502,256
BB E B ER Impairment losses recognised 111,217 89,000
EMERETR AT Y Z BRFX  Amount written off as uncollectible (654,473) -
NGRS At the end of year 48,000 591,256
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17. B AR ZIRE(E) 17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AR A & HAOR (8 Bl 5T 44 EL A
NEZ AR KRB BGIR - AT DO
BRBIZRERTBEMRBELSR
B FLP B A B L TR R E S
BREESIMBEBEXFTE2/EL AR

K o
=

B ARBRRGHAEEE 28K
EETERY - BERE - BREKH
J& A 7138 3,000,000 78 T4 - BB
RERAAFE Z & RBEANRE
HisEE R+ — @A NEE - Butk et
BARREKASEIEREIEE ©

TEWBATZEENT
ERAL/
£ HRREEY

At the end of each reporting period, the Company
assesses the prospects and financial position of its
subsidiaries, on an individual basis, as to whether there
is any indication of impairment of its investments in
subsidiaries or impairment loss previously recognised
for subsidiaries in prior years may no longer exist or
may need to be adjusted accordingly.

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the
opinion of the directors, except for an amount due
from subsidiaries of HK$3,000,000, the balances with
subsidiaries in prior year were not repayable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
they were therefore shown in the statement of financial
position as non-current.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERAEER/
AMRAEE

Nominal value of

FRREERECEAE TEXE
Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ issued ordinary share/ attributable to the
Name registration and business  registered capital Company Principal activities
Ef F3
Direct Indirect
ERDENET hEARAME(HE]),/ 6500000087 - 100 RERHESTER
BRAR"M G HK$65,000,000 Manufacture and trading
Global Asia High-tech The People’s Republic of electronic products
Electronics Co., Ltd." of China (The “PRC")/
Mainland China
Group Sense (Holding) ~ KEBRZEE 3,000%T - 100 RELZRK
Limited* BVI US$3,000 Investment holding
Group Sense (S.E.A.) RERLEE 157 100 - REER
Limited* BVI US$1 Investment holding
Group Sense Investment ~ XEBRZEE 137 100 - RERR
Limited* BVI US$1 Investment holding
REERAA & L@k 1,000 - 100 RtRHEEFER
Group Sense Limited Hong Kong BREEES Design and trading of
hEERERR electronic products
200,000
Ordinary shares
HK$1,000 Non-voting
5% deferred shares
HK$200,000?
REREARLA &k 2B - 100 REZMR
Group Sense Manufactory  Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding

Company Limited
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17. B AR ZIRE(E) 17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

MR,/ BROLER/
£ AR EE b EMRAEE ARAEEREZEOL  EEXE
Nominal value of Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ issued ordinary share/ attributable to the
Name registration and business  registered capital Company Principal activities
B R
Direct Indirect
EEEIRRARATA & 2B - 100 RitRHEEEFEM
Group Sense Mobile-Tech  Hong Kong HK$2 (ZZ—Mm Design and trading of
Limited :98.95) electronic products
(2014:
98.95)
REPDARRABRAR HEES LER2,115837 T - 98.95 REMRR
Group Sense PDA Cayman Islands ABELR17,182 Investment holding
Holdings Limited XTI
Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837 Series
A preferred shares
US$17,182
BEZ FERARAR i 100787 - 100 REtRBEEFEMR
Group Sense PDA Limited  Hong Kong HK$100 (ZZ—Mm Design and trading of
£:98.95) electronic products
(2014:
98.95)
EERANR(BE) B 1007 - 100 REZR
BRAA Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
Group Sense Software
Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited
KR L7E A BA 60,000,000 A - 100 RFARBEBFEM
Kabushiki Kaisha Group ~ Japan JPY60,000,000 Design and trading of
Sense” electronic products
Supreme Style RERLEE 100%7T - 100 RELRK
Technology Limited* BVI US$100 Investment holding
BRAAMBEARHAR HE/EN AR50,000,00070 - 51 RARHEEFERR
AR(RABD) ™ The PRC/ RMBS50,000,000 #f
Mainland China Design and trading of

100 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015

electronic products and
software



A %5 80 R P &E (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE—T—RAF=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

17. B AR ZRE(E) 17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
FfaE Notes:
(1) ZHINERF - (1)  Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
(2) EIERR D I FEFT B R AR B kB E B (2) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to
RABMERIRER ARG 2 i85 3 fE receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
BERASHINAE LIRRZHERN - TTE the company or to participate in any distribution on winding up.
RIESREL2HEMDIK
(3) MHEBIKIZZHRINGERE - (3) Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC
* ?Ki‘“ 57 22 oK 2 5T BN B 7% B sk H fth &2 ok * Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
SETANSBETBIRR A B e 1% © firm of the Ernst & Young global network
RN EERR/UREB 2 AFE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
FEABAXENEKAEREEF which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
BEZEFELHDzZMBRR - EFR affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
A REEMNE AR FERER portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
ERHBRITE © other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
WEA E AR AREBHEA Details of the Group’s subsidiary, F K&, that has
AR REGBRAE AT material non-controlling interests are set out below:
—E-HF —ZE—NF
2015 2014
FRoREB 2 FEFEHIBEZS P Percentage of equity interest held by non-
R RENGBLL X controlling interests of # A& i® 49% 49%
—E-HF —T-F
2015 2014
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
fRoAEB 2 JEfEHIEZR D Loss for the year allocated to non-
HARFEEE controlling interests of A XA (3,050) (6,392)
e el = Hﬁqﬂﬁﬂi_z Accumulated balances of non-controlling
FEE %\Jﬁé 52 BETA interests of H K&li@ at the reporting
(B HEER) dates (debit balance) (6,569) (3,519)
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17. B AR ZBRE(E) 17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
T3 R R A K@ S E R The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
Z o WEIEEHNAEEALZ AT information of # K&\ #. The amounts disclosed are
EHY A8 - before any intercompany eliminations:

—E¥-HF Z—T-0OF

2015 2014
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

Habg A Other income 2,217 1,381
X R Total expenses (8,441) (14,426)
REEzEBEAFE Loss for the year and total comprehensive

ZEHEEE loss for the year (6,224) (13,045)
MENEE Current assets 837 1,587
ERBEE Non-current assets 88,313 90,555
mENBE Current liabilities (102,557) (99,324)
R IS RHFE  Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,589) (2,452)
WEEKZIREMHFESE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (225) (10,741)
BMEEK IS RAFEE  Net cash flows from financing activities 2,893 9,897
RekReFEMEIEHE Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

238 m,/ Ofid ) #a equivalents 79 (3,296)
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18. 8 ERAZRE

18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

rEH

Group
—B-RF —FAF
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B EEFE Share of net assets 2,577 1,548
IR Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
9,257 8,228
FEWEE R RIERR Amounts due from joint ventures 606 6,312
o RE" Less: Impairment® (6,500) (5,706)
3,363 8,834

= /N Amounts due from joint

IR — K& ventures — current 1,201 401

B A ERRIRABREREE AR
ZIER - BEER 2B R IE
EREHRE+ —EAREER - 80

AN
%/T\IZI

BRI R RS BIERE

& W & &~ A Bk 51,201,000 7T
(ZZ—PU4E : 401,000 7T) Ty B4
RAKBERBEES - BEKF - &
B REEFEERE -

#

HREEERE—GEBERRIZE
BRR(BAWEEEZEEER
RN —BERAIZEER
HE%Z REEESBERHSH
el E - MERES PR —
BERRZRERMEGREE
#7,971,0007% 7t (R 1 BR BB
B8 AT ) ) MR R 1E 6,500,000 78

JC ©

RBEFE AR —BERAY
FEE  MER—EERFERR
WARATAIIE - HERERBER
RHERIWIE 5,706,000 87T ©

The amounts due from joint ventures included in
investments in joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
free and are not repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and are therefore shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
non-current.

The amounts due from joint ventures of HK$1,201,000
(2014: HK$401,000) included in the Group’s current
assets, are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
term of repayment.

*  Impairment of HK$6,500,000 was recognised
during the year for investment in a joint venture
with a carrying amount of HK$7,971,000 (before
deducting the impairment loss) because the
directors have reviewed the carrying amount of the
investment in a joint venture with reference to its
business performances prepared by the investee’s
management, and considered that a portion of the
amount could not be fully recoverable.

In prior year, impairment of HK$5,706,000 was
recognised for amount due from a joint venture
because the joint venture was dormant and the
amount due from the joint venture was considered
non-recoverable.
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18. 8B ATIZRE(E) 18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Y —EBRARIRFBERR—EE The movements in the provision for impairment of an
NRIZRERERE 2 EFHNT amount due from a joint venture and impairment of an
investment in a joint venture are as follows:
rEE
Group
“B-HF —TWF
2015 2014
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA At the beginning of year 5,706 5,706
ERERER AT YL 2 BRF  Amount written off as uncollectible (5,706) -
BEEBEER(MEG) Impairment loss recognised (note 6) 6,500 —
RER At the end of year 6,500 5,706
BERAZHERT : Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows:
Bt
Percentage of
Frse BT i
Ritz#e oSRREELE FERER FRE AR EEER
Particulars Place of
&R of issued registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held  and business interest power sharing activities
BENERRRERRLAA ARE B/ ER 19.78 20 19.78 HERHFEETER
Chongging New Standard 5,401,5507T The PRC/ =
Medical Equipment Co., Ltd* RMB5,401,550  Mainland China Manufacture
and trading of
electronic medical
appliances
RIE S EERAR" AR%15000  RE/HERH 50 50 50 PLHEEETER
RMB15,000 The PRC/ Online trading of
Mainland China electronic products
HENBERAR(HE] 700,000 7T &b i i E OEREH
Neoplatec Technology Company HK$700,000 HongKong (ZZ—-Mm%: (ZZ—-W%F: (ZF—M@F: Dormant
Limited (“Neoplatec’)' 35) 35) 35)
Nil Nil Nil
(2014:35)  (2014:35)  (2014: 35)
HENEARLA 1,000 BB i & B RERR
(IB8HE)) HK$1,000 HongKong (ZZE—ME%: (Z5-WF: (ZZE—EF: Investment Holding
GS Solutions Limited 33) 33) 33)
(“GS Solutions”)" Nil Nil Nil

(2014:33)  (2014:33)  (2014: 33)
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18. 8 ERAZKRE(E)

18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Y ORKEEB K E ST E T AT SR E A % K
SRR E TR B TR -

AEEBR-_FT—HF_A=-+BHLE

BEAANT -

N EERERRINKERARRBE
A e

AKEBER -_ZE—AHF_-_A=-+<H
HEHREREESHE - BREM I
ZEENREEBBEAEENREGER
AIZIRERAEBSEEXTAEE—
WZEER MASEEKRIERER
HREREEFENEE - A5 H
AEREBHEERARAFEREH
ERZRFTHNEEESE D R A24,000
Bt (= ZF — IO £ : 435,000/ 7T )
1,158,000/ ju(= & — 0 4F
1,134,000 7T) °

TRINRAEEER T BEKRIEER
BERAZHBEERME -

(continued)

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The Group disposed of the joint ventures on 26 February 2015.

The above investments in joint ventures are indirectly
held by the Company.

The Group disposed of Neoplatec and GS Solutions
on 26 February 2015. The Group has discontinued
the recognition of its share of losses of Neoplatec and
GS Solutions because the share of losses of these
joint ventures exceeded the Group’s investments in
the joint ventures and the Group has no obligation to
take up further losses. The amounts of the Group’s
unrecognised share of losses of these joint ventures for
the current year and cumulatively upon disposal were
HK$24,000 (2014: HK$435,000) and HK$1,158,000
(2014: HK$1,134,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

rEH
Group
—E-HF —T—@EF
2015 2014
FERT FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
NEFZEEAE QTR Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the
year 1,029 6
REERIGEERT Share of the joint ventures’ total
FEKAREE comprehensive income for the year 1,029 6
AEBREEARKRE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
ZREBE investments in the joint ventures 2,757 8,228
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19. BELQT Z2RE

19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEE
Group
—B-RF —FAF
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
E(REEFE Share of net assets 22
JE Wik i R R BR 3K Amounts due from associates - 16,899
A A" Less: Impairment” - (11,165)
22 5,734
RBEFE  BREBERQAIRRA In the prior year, the amounts due from associates, net

5,734,000;‘%7_5(E%uﬁfma)ﬁﬁ%
RAEBRBEET  BEEF - %
BN EEFEERE -

RS AEEB T 2HE D
Théﬁ-m&ﬂa' W E 3R
M 187,225,000 T(k #0 K
ﬁﬁ}@ﬂéﬁﬁﬁ)(:;—mir
11,165,000 8 7T ) Z F& W Bt &

»

of impairment, of HK$5,734,000 included in the Group’s
current assets, were unsecured, interest-free and had
no fixed terms of repayment.

* Impairment was recognised for the amounts
due from associates with a carrying amount of
HK$7,225,000 (2014: HK$11,165,000) (before
deducting the impairment loss) because the
associates of the Group had been making losses

=19E SRR - persistently.
JE Wi Bt 5 X RIBRBUB B B 2 B Eh an The movements in the provision for impairment of
I amounts due from associates are as follows:
rEH
Group
—E-HfF —T—UF
2015 2014
FTHERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
hNE ) At the beginning of year 11,165 10,274
BEBERER(HEG) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 7,225 1,174
BEEERE (MEe) Impairment losses reversed (note 6) - (283)
EMERIERAT U E 2 BR3K  Amount written off as uncollectible (18,390) -
N At the end of year - 11,165
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19. BE AR ZRE(E) 19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

e NmZFBWT

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

i KBRS
P E 81T it K AR
£ Bb 2 #1E Bl ZEHANE FEEE
Percentage
Place of  of ownership
Particulars incorporation/ interest
of issued registration attributable Principal
Name shares held and business  to the Group activities
BNPBREFREFRAR" AR#3,000,0007c FE/FRERL 30 EEER
RMB3,000,000 The PRC/ (ZZ—M% : Dormant
Mainland China 100)
(2014: 100)
BREREABRAR (&R 3,500/ 7T BB B EEXK
ACME Tech Precision Moulds HK$3,500 Hong Kong (ZZ—MM% : Dormant
Limited (*ACME”)*" 35)
Nil
(2014: 35)
wHeFREERAR(THMNER]) 45,000 7T BB B EEEH
Sinocard Technology Limited (“Sinocard”)*" HK$45,000 Hong Kong (ZZ—M% : Dormant
45)
Nil
(2014: 45)
BEEBRBEERAR([EEERB])" 100,000 7T BB B REER
Group Sense Plastic Technology HK$100,000 Hong Kong (ZZ—M% : Investment
Company Limited (“GSPT”)*" 33) holding
Nil
(2014: 33)

RIQE B LK 5T ADF 15 P S H A 22 ok
BTN E R PTEIFRAK B P o

AN AREBR-_Z—RF_A-+BHE

T AT TG MK N\ =
AL R NE] o

FRAAREBERA 2B & RR g - T)
REARRAEEMBARRAE 2 ik

*

firm of the Ernst & Young global network

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member

A The Group disposed of the associates on 26 February 2015.

All of the Group’s shareholdings in the associate are

comprised of equity shares held through wholly-owned
N subsidiaries of the Company.
AEEERZE—RAF_A=+<H
HEZRR - wMNERRESER - i
RIS QRS EBRAEE
REERRIZRERAEBRAEEE
BREE-—FEBEERE  BAEEEKIL
EREEEER - MNEeRRIESE
BHEE - NEBAREREGEHE R
ARAFEREERRFTHNEESRE
7 7l /583,000 8 T(ZF — MM F :
141,000 % 7T ) & 7,349,000 7 7T(=
T —IM4 : 6,766,000 7T) °

The Group disposed of ACME, Sinocard and GSPT on
26 February 2015. The Group has discontinued the
recognition of its share of losses of ACME, Sinocard and
GSPT because the share of losses of these associates
exceeded the Group’s investments in the associates
and the Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share
of losses of the associates for the current year and
cumulatively upon disposal were HK$583,000 (2014:
HK$141,000) and HK$7,349,000 (2014: HK$6,766,000),
respectively.
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20. M HERE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
rEE
Group
—E-HF —T-NF
2015 2014
THET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
JE T RERRE - #AKAS  Unlisted equity investments, at cost 32,680 46,425
o ORE Less: Impairment” (25,380) (15,226)
7,300 31,199
! HRREXRRXARE RERKEEE # Impairment was recognised for unlisted investments with a
32,680,000 % 7t (F0BR B E BB AT ) (= carrying amount of HK$32,680,000 (before deducting the
T — U4 : 46,425,000/8 ) ZFE LT impairment loss) (2014: HK$46,425,000) due to the non-
KA ERRME - performance of these investments.
AHEERERERE 2 ZESHHT - The movements in the provisions for impairment of
available-for-sale investments are as follows:
AEE
Group
—E-HF —T-NF
2015 2014
FTExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RF ] At the beginning of year 15,226 10,000
BERE(HiEe) Provision for impairment (note 6) 14,755 5,226
A ERERREER  Amount written off upon disposal of
HiiH 2 2% an available-for-sale investment (4,601) -
RELL At the end of year 25,380 15,226
i g MRSk FMARIEESIRE The above investments consist of investments in unlisted
HIEFERAHEERE - equity securities which were designated as available-
for-sale investments.
R-ZE—RAF=A=+—8 " kLW As at 31 March 2015, the unlisted equity investments
BRERERNGBEAHEHEHE L were stated at cost less impairment because the range
EEFEARE  AREERR/AF of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant
BT 8ER] SEH T = M AR AR 2R E that the directors were of the opinion that their fair value

EE3E - cannot be measured reliably.
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21.

22,

23.

BEMEBHENE - RIZe @2
TREEEI AW EARCER ©

21.LONG TERM DEPOSITS

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets relate to deposits for which there was
no recent history of default.

A 22.INVENTORIES
rEE
Group
—B-RF —F-AF
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R4 Raw materials 19,291 32,147
& m Work in progress 5,327 7,150
RIRK om Finished goods 10,913 7,742
35,531 47,039
EWE Z R 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES
rEE
Group
—E-HF _—ZT—NF
2015 2014
FExT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
JEME F BRI Trade receivables 38,886 59,094
BB Impairment (17,765) (15,507)
21,121 43,587

AEBEAERFEZETENEER
AT - FRA RN FI0E60
X BETFPEERAEERE - &
£ BRSSK Mg =5 W HOR B 2 FRULRIR
ETTBARIE S B EEERREE &R
K- =mREEETHENEY 2%
B o NEEY E G H EUCE B IR
S A TEA DA M EER R
(2 - EUE ZERRDAFIE - EERE
RERFIFTR2HME43 -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 60 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are interest-free. Please refer to note 43 for
details of credit risk management.
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23. BB SRR (E)

AT 2 e W E 5 BRI ¥R & B R H0RR

BEBRRNFEHBE 2Rk -

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the payment due
dates and net of provisions, is as follows:

rEE

Group
—E-HF —ET—HEF
2015 2014
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
LR 60K Within 60 days 20,406 40,285
61 £ 90K 61 to 90 days 134 145
390K Over 90 days 581 3,157
21,121 43,587

FEWE ZERFORERE 2 ZEHIAT -

The movements in the provisions for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

rEH

Group
—E-HF —ZE—NF
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RFH] At the beginning of year 15,507 16,189
BEBERER(HEG) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 4,064 1,720
BEMERET AT YLE Z BRFX  Amounts written off as uncollectible (1,806) (2,402)
RF At the end of year 17,765 15,507

i EWE SERFBREREBRE
1I%IJ£<«/JMEJHWZ% R
17,765,000 (= & — g F :
1awzwm%ﬁ>ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
17,765,000 t(= & — g 4 :
15,507,000;‘%7?) 18] 1) 4% 8 (B FE UK
BoRNEREFHRANESRIER
B TRHAE R B ERKERER . —

21 o

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$17,765,000 (2014: HK$15,507,000)
with a gross carrying amount of HK$17,765,000 (2014:
HK$15,507,000). The individually impaired trade
receivables relate to customers that were in default
or delinquency in payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.
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23. EWE SRR (E) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

I A 5l Sk KRR AR TIRE 2 R UK
BHRARREONAT

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

rEE

Group
—B-RF —FAF
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
KRB EATNERE Neither past due nor impaired 19,951 37,759
B H— = W {E A 1 to 2 months past due 455 2,526
BHRZE=1EA 2 to 3 months past due 134 145
BHIE B = A Over 3 months past due 581 3,157
21,121 43,587

R 368 B IR R (E 2 R U AR SRR KL
DB E PR E R R o

218 BB ERE 2 FE U RSB N AR &
BZELSRFNEF - REBBER
i ARRIEERA  HNEEEER
WS ANE - WRBEHID A 28
1{4%@ » BUBRZA LI FAE R VR R E

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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24. f_gﬁ%ﬁtlﬁ s B Rk E A EWER

TA

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

rEE ARAF
Group Company
—E-RF —T-NF ZE-RF —THNF
2015 2014 2015 2014

FERT TAET FET TR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

EUNE Prepayments 1,948 2,918 299 290
b Deposits 5,147 12,557 - -
H A e I BR 3K Other receivables 32,993 39,256 21 -
EAIE] Impairment (28,025)  (26,564) - —

12,063 28,167 320 290

e MEBHSRE - REREEER
fll EUBR R B R

FHTBFRIE - e R E A EUER K
2 BB R B +E 28,025,000 7T( =
T — U 4 : 26,564,000 7T ) 2 B
# - HBRME{E A 28,719,000 (=
ZT—P4 : 32,819,000/ 7T ) © @5
R B Lt 8 Uk BR 3k B E th FE UK BR 3R
/RSB BGRIEE RS - TEERE R Uk E]
I ERINERR Z — 36D - NEE I &
S Z A AR A AR A m sk E A (5
EIRARE o EeRH b fE R R
1BH TN BB N B A R AR 3T BRI 4
KR8k 2B AT o

BNFR - me ME A RKERF R
BEREESMT

None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. The
provision for impairment relates to other receivables.

Included in the above provision for impairment of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
provisions of HK$28,025,000 (2014: HK$26,564,000)
with a carrying amount of HK$28,719,000 (2014
HK$32,819,000). The individually impaired other
receivables relate to other receivables that were in
default or delinquency in payments and only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over this balance. The remaining balance
of other receivables is neither past due nor impaired
and relates to a large number of independent parties for
whom there was no recent history of default.

The movements in the provision for impairment of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as
follows:

rEH

Group
—E-HF —ZE—NNF
2015 2014
FER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA]) At the beginning of year 26,564 17,139
BEBERER(HEG) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 6,955 9,425
BERE (MFE6) Reversal of impairment (note 6) (412) -
BHMERET AT YLE Z BRFX  Amounts written off as uncollectible (5,082) -
NG At the end of year 28,025 26,564
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25. Iﬁ;ﬁ;wﬂﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁ kEE# 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

XN PLEDGED DEPOSITS
AEH b N
Group Company
“E-RF —T-NF ZE—-HF —T—NF
2015 2014 2015 2014
FET FET FERx FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
W& MIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 112,052 33,496 76,750 101
TEHF R Time deposits 1,012 1,001 - -
113,064 34,497 76,750 101
o —EEHRITE Less: Pledged deposits for
ZIERER a short term bank
(Ft3E28) loan (note 28) (1,012) (1,001) - -
ReEMREEMEER Cash and cash equivalents 112,052 33,496 76,750 101

RIMEBKR ZREBUAARETA
REDAEZREeMNREEEEAR
456,423,000 jt(= & — IO 4F :
6,981,000 87L) - ARENSEEA
HREMER - AW - BEPEINE
EREO RAEE - EERMNESER
EAEBEESRERENREE
%%%mﬁﬂ?%ﬂ%AE%E¢ﬁ%ﬁ1 =1

RITME HIRBRITE ARITHFRA
RZFHMEREAE - BFAREE
B ESHR - RHERFERHIR
A=A - WRE A\ ZEHE TR
M RERERF R o RITHERLIBERFR
RN ERIFHER BRE RN
RACEREVIRTT

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$6,423,000 (2014:
HK$6,981,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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26. BN E 3 RN 26. TRADE PAYABLES
LA™ AFER 8 5 RN S BAR IR An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
HKEH R Z BRI DA - of the reporting period, based on the payment due

dates, is as follows:

rEE
Group
—E-HF —T-NF
2015 2014
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
LR 60K Within 60 days 14,062 34,611
61 £ 90K 61 to 90 days 62 1,151
390K Over 90 days 3,929 4,383
18,053 40,145
ENEZEREE - B—MR6e0X The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
EE o normally settled on 60-day terms.

27. LW EN R R ETEE 27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
HMENERERREFAEL &S Other payables and accruals are interest-free and
HEBRERER - repayable on demand.

28. [ RRITHEE 28.INTEREST — BEARING BANK

BORROWINGS
KEE Group
“E-1% —Z-mF
2015 2014
BRAIE i) THER ERF= g2l THBT
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$’000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
ik Current RER REK
FITEF— AHA  Bank loans - secured 2.6%-3.5% On demand 27,781 26%36% On demand 23,814
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28. M B RITREE(E)

29.

GEE

(@) R-E—AF=A=+—BAEERT]T
ERA T R

(i) AAEERBREFREARELD
7,455,000 7T Z 1 FIE B IR B IR
B R

(i) AXEXREEZEHERIELK
. £%51,012,000/87T + &

(i) ANAR]AERERETAEBHIRITR
BRETRENQGER €58
/30,000,000 7T (= Z — PO 4F -
85,000,000/87T) °

by R—ZE—RHE=ZF=+—H A&EE
BEEBRITERBIEANB TFE " &
REREE DAERBBRITBEER
BmBARITRZREMENE3I% K
BEEREFEK26%TBZAREEBITER
17,848,000%8 7T 5 9,933,000 /8 7T °

(c) R—ZE-—mWE=A=+—8 ' ~&H
BEFRETERBIEUNB THE &
BREREE DREREBRITEER
BINEF E3% kBB F E2.6%: &
Z 18 & 98 17 & 513,800,000 78 T &
10,014,000/ 7T °

28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i) a mortgage over the Group’s building, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period
of approximately HK$7,455,000;

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to HK$1,012,000; and

(iii) corporate guarantees by the Company to banks for banking
facilities granted to the Group amounting to HK$30,000,000
(2014: HK$85,000,000).

(b) As at 31 March 2015, included in the Group’s secured bank
loans were outstanding bank loans of HK$17,848,000 and
HK$9,933,000 denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which borne
interest at HIBOR or LIBOR plus 3% per annum and at the
effective interest rate of 2.6%, respectively, and were repayable
on demand.

(c) As at 31 March 2014, included in the Group’s secured bank
loans were outstanding bank loans of HK$13,800,000 and
HK$10,014,000 denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which borne
interest at HIBOR plus 3% per annum and at the effective interest
rate of 2.6%, respectively, and were repayable on demand.

29. PROVISION
B
_ Group

A 5Rm ERRE
Product
warranties
THERT
HK$’000
RZZE—UFMA—H At 1 April 2014 1,573
BN Additional provision 455
NN Amounts utilised during the year (323)
M H &5 Exchange realignment (38)
R-ZZE—RF=H=+—H At 31 March 2015 1,667

AEEREHEFEQNES RER
FE=FRE - AREERETRE
ST - BEEREE BT NS
ERREE R AR RS « Rk R
SIS TR - AR (5ET -

The Group provides two to three year warranties to
its customers on certain of its electronic products,
under which faulty products are repaired or replaced.
The amount of provision is estimated based on sales
volumes and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate.
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BHE—

30.

31.

32.

FE A5 — Bff B 2 B — FF 42 I IR 3R
R

FE A5 — BT /B8 % B — FE4% il R R 2 AR K

B RENEETENY -
REREM

BRREFELIT - REBRBER12
BAREE -

IEAE B TH

AEERBBEBIHBE B |
HRARBEARAEENBBEIEA
403,693,000 T(= T — I F :
358,107,000/%8 7T ) M AJ f % R Ef
BIHEEAEBBEN QT RRKE
R A o NS B IR R B A EE
465,227,000 (= &E — 0 4 -
52,964,000 7T ) T 75 &5 18 - I Al
RARR— 2 1 F A AR R ERB &
Ao AMBAREEE —RIEHE
R E R F A B DA SE it S K
BAR AR HBEEE St E
EiEmE  WABRBECEMIEEE °

RBFFBEGEMEHE - RPRBEAH
I ZINERERINEIREET IR Z
[ B BBK10% 2 EHHE - FER
FER-_ZETN\F—A—BBER
WEAR—_EE+F+_A=+—~H
ZEEEZEF o fmH B A N
REEMBRIZEER 2RI AR
Wik B IR BURE AR X @mo
HKEIWD HEAMERS% o
$E.ﬁﬁﬁ¢.WﬂW42W
%QT#_??AE A—BLABE
&2 BT IR 2 IR BB E T

30.

31.

32.

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has
no fixed terms of repayment.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and not repayable within 12 months.

DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong before
Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) assessment of
HK$403,693,000 (2014: HK$358,107,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$65,227,000 (2014: HK$52,964,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised
by these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.
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32 IRAERBLIE (48)

R-ZZB—hF=A=1t—0H  A&HE
WERNPEAMKL B AT
Bg NE LA ERREKRELZMM
B 2 RS E R R AR
HIE - BEERG - WEHBLQR - B
ERR A ERRER RARRNKA
EENIKEEFRR - RREHKR - BH
R BEAHHEAR  8ERAR
BENRINE  UAREELEERNE
RERE(ZT—MF: &) -

AR A EE R A BB A
PRISRRR -

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 March 2015, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding dividend taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings, that are subject to withholding
dividend taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates,
and joint ventures established in Mainland China. In
the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. There
was no significant temporary difference associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in Mainland China at the end of the reporting
period (2014: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

33. kA 33.SHARE CAPITAL
—E-HF _—TOF
2015 2014
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
VAT Authorised:
3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 (2014: 3,000,000,000)
—E—P4F ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
3,000,000,000) %
TRk EREE
0.10%&7T 300,000 300,000
BEITRER Issued and fully paid:
1,437,195,029 1,437,195,029 (2014: 1,197,663,029)
(ZZE—PO4F : ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
1,197,663,029) %
TEREREE
0.1087T 143,719 119,766
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33. RA(E) 33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
ARARBETRAZZEBHMNT - A summary of movements in the Company’s issued
share capital is as follows:
BRTRAHE k& RHEERAE aE
Share
Number of Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
TBT TAL TAEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-=mA-B-: At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014
“Z-EE=A=1+—H and 1 April 2014
kZF-NEmA—-H 1,197,663,029 119,766 409,710 529,476
BT (a) New issues (a) 239,532,000 23,953 52,697 76,650
R ETRX Share issue expenses - - (2,095) (2,095)
RZE-RE=A=+-H At 31 March 2015 1,437,195,029 143,719 460,312 604,031

BI5E - Note

R—_ZE—RE=-HF =+, 8"
239,532,000 A% Z AR EI{E 0.1 78 7o M AR D
EERREEER0I2EBTLET  BHEE
KRB 7% 76,650,000 78 7o (FIBRFAZAT) ©

34. #E

(a) =& E
REERRFENBEFE 2
A E S IR NN e S
FIBEZFAEREBRNA -

(a)

(a)

REEZH B EEERIE
—NN=ZFARBZEMD LHA]
PAETT 2 7 5 B B 4 T WAURE 2 FfY
BRRKRM ZEE  BSRBME
Pty M7 2 AR BRI EEZ
ER o
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On 26 February 2015, 239,532,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.32 per
share for a total cash consideration of HK$76,650,000, before
expenses.

34. RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 38 of the financial
statements.

The Group’s special reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1993, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
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34. RHE(E) 34. RESERVES (continued)
(b) &1 F] (b) Company
ROEER  BARR RARERE  RHER BE
Share Capital
premium  Contributed redemption Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses Total

i TAT TATL TATL TATL TAT
Notes ~ HK§000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O000

R-E-—=FNA—H At 1 April 2013 409,710 21976 419 (216,609) 215,49
TFERERRAET Total comprehensive loss for

the year 1 - - - (88,588) (88,588)
RZZ-ME=A=+—H At31 March 2014 and

RZZ-MEMA-A 1 April 2014 409,710 21,976 419 (305,197) 126,908

AEXAFEER Total comprehensive loss for

the year 11 - - - (111,784) (111,784)
ikt Issues of shares 33(a) 52,697 - - - 52,697
RipETR Share issue expenses (2,095) - - - (2,095)
W-F-REZB=+-0  At31March 2015 460,312 21,976 49 (416981) 65726
KRB ZHARKIE Wiiﬂ% The Company’s contributed surplus represents
—NN=FARRRZ B A the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
Fﬁ}&ﬁZ%i%ﬂﬁﬁHﬁ%zW% subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
BRI 2 A AR AR reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
S B T 347 2 A1 R AR 7 shares in 1993, over the nominal value of the
Bz80 - R\ ARERBA Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
1981 —HEIRAAIAIES TIBER Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a
T ABABRERR A 2 SRR A company may make distributions to its members out
KEEE DK ° of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
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35. HEME X F 35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
—_E—FHEF
2015
L FET
Note HK$’000
HEREFE - Net liabilities disposed of:
Y - BB R Property, plant and equipment 14 15
HekHeFEE Cash and cash equivalents 197
HEmEWERER RIZS Other receivables and deposits 1
A& B RBIFIA Amounts due from joint ventures 3
Hith TR R BT BE Other payables and accruals (453)
(237)
HEMRB AR e Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 280
43
SANEE Satisfied by:
—MIBARIREREZ AFE  Fair value of an equity investment in a
REBIER—BERRIZIRE subsidiary retained as an investment in
an associate 22
Re Cash 21
43
ATRUELEHRBRRIZRERAS An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
ZEEERLFEIN equivalents in respect of the subsidiaries disposed of is
as follows:
—_E—FHEF
2015
FERT
HK$’000
RERE Cash consideration 21
HEHReMREFEIER Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (197)
REERBARIZH S Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
K3 e EEIEE R F5E respect of the disposals of subsidiaries (176)
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BHE—

36. AEE

()Eti_??}\i A=+—H1t

FENA - SRS ([ R
%ADEE%A;m$EI—W
BAR([HEADRLEHFA > [
WEARR—EREG627,571%
TC(#74,895,00087T) 2 &8 °
REAEBEEAER—HBH
A-EETNF+ - A=HZRK
([ ZmEl) - KREERZD=
H(TZBR]D - 3 ®E
ATMAEZRREARERER -
WIEBREAERZGZE K8
AT RAERZ B EIREZ]
RERBEABMET ZER o Bt -
BEAMREARIRBEER -
EXREANBEECEERE
1oomm%ﬁil%&ﬁ?€ﬁéz
HMBEEREE  ERMNEKLAE
(IREZE]) -

ERAlHERELENATERM
ERBENEL  WEAZRE
R ED A3 Pl Bl ax BB R AE B B
o AREAEZBRERRRER
BHEBF -  RAFE » £1BZE
BLEEAERERMZERER
RRIAE—PER  AREE
ERREARMIELRE( =T
—mE ) -

T—RFE=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2008, an

independent service provider (the “Plaintiff”)
issued a legal proceeding in Hong Kong against
a subsidiary of the Group (the “Defendant”)
and a claim against the Defendant for a sum of
US$627,571 (approximately HK$4,895,000). The
Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant was in breach
of a service agreement dated 3 December 2004
(the “Agreement”) and failed to make payments
in accordance with the Agreement (the “Claim”).
In this connection, the Defendant alleged that the
Plaintiff was in breach of the Agreement in failing
to design and develop the products in substantial
conformance to the functional specification as
defined in the Agreement and made a counterclaim
against the Plaintiff for liquidated damages in the
sum of US$100,000 and other damages to be
assessed together with interest and costs (the
“Counterclaim”).

Based on the available evidence and subject to
discovery and expert evidence, the Defendant’s
representing solicitor considered that there were
valid defences to the Claim and the Defendant had
a good chance of success on the Claim and the
Counterclaim. During the year, there was no further
progress of the Claim and Counterclaim noted.
Having considered the positive legal opinion and
no further progress of the Claim and Counterclaim
during the year, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no provision is required to be made
(2014: Nil).
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36. RABMB(E) 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) PMMEHR - EIHBEHREKF 2 E (b) At the end of the reporting period, details of other
sk ABEFEBERAT : contingent liabilities in the financial statements were
as follows:
rEE b NYNE
Group Company
ZE-RF —TNF ZB-HF —TNOF
2015 2014 2015 2014

TERT AT TR TAT
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000

HEBRITET Guarantees given to
ME AR EERE banks in connection
M4 TIR1T 2 EIR with facilities granted to

subsidiaries - - 30,000 85,000
PR T RS Guarantees for loans
BENERZER granted to an available-
for-sale investment - 7,710 - =
- 7710 30,000 85,000
RZF—HF=A=+—8B A& As at 31 March 2015, the banking facilities granted
BN A A4 T SRTT IR IR 1T 45 T MY to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given
BRAZETEEBEHAE to the banks by the Company were utilised to the
17,848,0007\%7}(:%_m¢\5 extent of HK$17,848,000 (2014: HK$13,800,000).
13,800,000 70 ) M AR © i A% Loans granted to an available-for-sale investment
—F-WUF=A=1—8 & at 31 March 2014 was utilised to the extent of
T-AHLERENEREER HK$6,828,000.
E A E 496,828,000 % T A2
Jg o
37. EEEK 37.PLEDGE OF ASSETS
ALEUREREERBMNRITE Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured by
HHFFIERMIEE14 - 25 % 28 » certain assets of the Group, are included in notes 14, 25

and 28.
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38. KEHEZRH

39.

AEERBEZHELHHEAREST
BRFENEIEIRES -MEZHE
BEH—E_FF-

RZE—RAE=A=+—08  X~&H
w A DR EUE 2 &K EHE R R KR&ED
ENHEEERE  mESEwHATENR
™o

38.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to twenty years.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

rEE

Group
—E-HF T AF
2015 2014
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FNR Within one year 1,806 5,042

RE_FEFRHF In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(BIEEEMF) 4,700 4,620
HBRAF After five years 1,960 3,062
8,466 12,724

RIREEK - A TR A E AL
SRERH -

A
B EXHEESe 2 MR AE RS

N REERIBMEHARTE FNHER
FRHE

39.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant operating lease arrangements.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 38 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

rEE

Group
—E-HF —ZT—NF
2015 2014
FERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

BRI AVERER S - Contracted, but not provided for:

M - BB KRR Property, plant and equipment 339 1,880

R|EHR - AR BB ERAE
(ZZT—MF : &) o

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant commitments (2014: Nil).
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40.BBEALTRS 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BEMESIFBREH b= astit (a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
BZ SN - RANER - NEESF in these financial statements, the Group had the
THEABEALTTS following material transactions with related parties
- during the year:
rEE
Group
“B-HF —TWF
2015 2014
Loz THET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
NEEE —FE 2 A RIURER Royalty expense charged by an
2 AR associate of the Group (i) 86 232
m—EE A REE Purchases of products from an
ZEm associate (i) 5,010 13,769
E—EE QR Service income from an associate
Z IRAGUWA (iii) 1,385 -
mM—EEBRNRIHE Sales to a joint venture (iv) 1,772 -
BT Notes:
(i) EAREIHEREBASE-—KHEBEQ (i) The royalty expense was calculated based on the number
ARAFEANFHENE LETEM of electronic handheld products sold by a subsidiary of
E0E2 63 AN I EAL = PNGIE the Group during the year with the terms as stipulated
RIS 2 E B EIGRETE - in the royalty agreement between the associate and that
subsidiary.
(i) M—EEAREE 2 EmIRERE (i) The purchases from an associate were made according
BENRRTHEIERFP 2 AFHE to the published prices and conditions offered by the
R A ELEY o associates to its major customers.
(i) KBE—EEQARZREKAZREAR (iii) The service income from an associate was charged at a
125,000 /& T 42ER © monthly rate of HK$125,000.
(iv) M—EERARKEEBEAER (iv) The sales to a joint venture was made according to the
MEFERZFHEE 2 ARER &G published prices and conditions offered to the major
FRHELT © customers of the Group.
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40. BEALRB () 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) REBETEEIE A BHRB : (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:
AEH
Group
—E-HF —T—HEF
2015 2014
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHEE = Short term employee benefits 9,142 10,759
ELRIF R 2 18 Performance-related incentive
payments - 200
IRURET I K Pension scheme contributions 264 294
XTNEEBEEBAE Total compensation paid to key
2 A s management personnel 9,406 11,253
EEMEE ST BFEHRTIER Further details of directors’ emoluments are
RHIFES © included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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M. EZERE S 2EMTIA 41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
SR T ERRE SRR EEE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
R financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

—E-fHE rEE
2015 Group
TREE Financial assets
BERR e
JE Wt BR =X CRMEE et
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
FTHERT FHET FAER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments - 7,300 7,300
P ERERE 2 EMEE Financial assets included in long
term deposits 55 - 55
FEWE 5 8RR Trade receivables 21,121 - 21,121
P RTENIE - EE Financial assets included in
T i Us BR FR prepayments, deposits and other
LEMEE receivables 10,115 - 10,115
B & E R AR Amounts due from joint ventures 1,201 - 1,201
BEEAER Pledged deposits 1,012 - 1,012
ReMAeEMEEE Cash and cash equivalents 112,052 - 112,052
145,556 7,300 152,856
TRaE Financial liabilities
12 8 88 R A BT
EveREas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FExT
HK$’000
JERTE BRI Trade payables 18,053
B 7 EAth FE AT BR TR K2 Financial liabilities included in other payables and
EEtEaGEzeRAR accruals 16,241
Mt B ERITIEER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27,781
— B A A Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
—IEIE I IR R AR K subsidiary 2,002
—HZRERER Loan from a shareholder 42,000
106,077
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M.EZERE 2T A(E) 41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

—E-F ARHE
2014 Group
TREE Financial assets
=570 A E
JE W BR K CREE 1B
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments — 31,199 31,199
V=33 b= pd Financial assets included in long
CREE term deposits 52 — 52
W E P IR Trade receivables 43,587 — 43,587
5| BIERFIE - Financial assets included in
12 K E b FE AR 5K prepayments, deposits and other
LERMEE receivables 25,249 — 25,249
B & E R AR Amounts due from joint ventures 401 — 401
JiE Wi B 2 R B BR 3R Amounts due from associates 5,734 — 5,734
[WEAELREE N Pledged deposits 1,001 - 1,001
RekRE&FEEE Cash and cash equivalents 33,496 — 33,496
109,520 31,199 140,719
- N =R Financial liabilities
oG L Xic
KAETE
=N
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FHETT
HK$'000
JERTE 5 BRI Trade payables 40,145
B 7 EoAth FE AT BR TR K2 Financial liabilities included in other payables and
EEtREzemAE accruals 23,212
M BIRITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 23,814
JE— B A A Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
—IEIEHI IR R AR K subsidiary 2,002
89,173
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M. ZEREsz2EMTRE)

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

RKRAF

TREE Financial assets Company

BERRERERR
Loans and receivables

—B-RF —FAF

2015 2014

FExT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

JE LB B R R BR 3K Due from subsidiaries 134,406 445,266
e MIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 76,750 101
H b e I BR X Other receivables 21 —
211,177 445 367

- N =R Financial liabilities REBHERATTEZSRMAE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

—E-RF —T—NF
2015 2014
FExT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

I 4 A B AT BR X Financial liabilities included in
NMEGFTEEZEMEE other payables and accruals 2,031 74
FERT BB A RIBR K Due to subsidiaries - 198,578
2,031 198,652

R.ETMTIAZAFERATFESE

n

EREDHEARBEcEREENRS
MEEZATE  TESAHEER
& - EREERS - tSEAEE R
REFTABRERANZE - BAF
BENEER SRt &8 » A ERERK
AR AEATRERRAR

R-E—HEFER-_FT-—HNF=AH
=t—H  ARERARRALEEA
BAFEFEZEMIA -

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities, except for
available-for-sale investments, approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments. Available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less impairment as their fair values cannot
be reliably measured.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group and the
Company did not have any financial instruments
measured at fair value.
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43. i EBREEBERBEK 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEETZoRTARERE - BY
H BRI AR - Be ME
HER  REGEX BEQAFANREE
NEESR  BNE SRR - EbEN
R e BT BRI THE B A R A — T /8
DR IHERIBERER L —BRRE

Ko

AEESMTAEANEERR AR
ERK REBEERERRINERR o
BEeRTMAEERLEREAK
BT

EERR
AEBZEZERRTERGHEKRE
SR - REERAEE LKERD
HEERBOEBEZ2RF - R_F
—RF=A=+t—HAAKXEFEk
ERWEZIERARETERIB25% (ZF
— PO : HBiE55%) - MELEFE X
BRI BRI NERR - EBEHAEEK
EEESENEREAMTE - BEE
RERERKE  AEEEEECEZRIK
—HAE  BaEETEERE =8
EH N E A IEIR R - AREIREREUR
ERE U OB HAETS o AN - ANEE
erHEMEFHEENEKE SRR
A Bl & 58 - ARERFEA A Bl & 58
TEH RS2 BERE - Fiitms - &
EREETRAEAEBZZERAREE
ZEE I KRIBERIE -

MR AEEERRY 2 EBBE 2 8
“HETEE I EERIEHER
on °

AEBEMEREE(RRERS LR
wFEEE  AIEHERE - BKA
BRmMBERNRRA M ESREN
A - Re KEMBYGRIAR 2 & F
BE)ZEERRKBHNOTKRE
mARZ &= ERESFNIEEFTAZ
AREE

Th AN SR B AT 2K 5 R W E SRR

Hip W R 2 EERKR - HE—F
%%m%%%%%ﬁ%%ﬂ%&24
E‘E‘_O

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
comprise investments, trade and other receivables, cash
and short term deposits, long term deposits, balances
with associates and a joint venture, trade payables,
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowing and
an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and loan from a shareholder.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for a
substantial portion of its business. Over 25% (2014:
over 55%) of the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
March 2015 were due from the Group’s five largest
customers. The failure of these customers to make the
required payments could have a negative impact on the
Group’s operating results. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is properly managed and significantly
reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale investments, amounts due from joint ventures
and associates and financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in note 23 and 24
to the financial statements.
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings and banking facilities. The Group’s
bank borrowings would mature in less than one year
as at 31 March 2015 based on the carrying value of
borrowings reflected in the financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

rEH Group
—E-RF
2015
EER PR=@ER BB—F st
On Less than Over
demand 3 months 1 year Total
FTHET FAERT FTAER FAER
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
it 2RITEE Interest-bearing bank
borrowings 27,781 - - 27,781
ERTE SR Trade payables 10,281 7,772 - 18,053
H At FE 1< BR 5K Other payables 16,241 - - 16,241
e — B2 7] Due to a non-controlling
— IE PRI AR R AR X shareholder of a subsidiary 2,002 - - 2,002
—HRRER Loan from a shareholder - - 42,000 42,000
56,305 7,772 42,000 106,077

130 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015



A %5 80 R P &E (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE—T—RAF=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

43. AR EEBERBE(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

RBESRR(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
rEE Group
—mE
2014
BER LPR=EHR BE—F st
On Less than Over
demand 3 months 1 year Total

TATT TR TR TR
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$'000

it 2RITEE Interest-bearing bank
borrowings 23,814 - - 23,814
BN E 5 RN Trade payables 21,675 18,470 - 40,145
EWEHEE?X Other payables 23,212 - - 23,212
R —HME L Due to a non-controlling
— = %llﬂx?ﬁﬁﬁm shareholder of a subsidiary 2,002 - - 2,002
R T AL E Guarantees for loans granted
BEMNERZER to an available-for-sale
investment 6,828 - - 6,828
77,531 18,470 - 96,001
REEEAR » LAEET4RALIRAIA A The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities
HXE - KNAFERABEZ BRI as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
R contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
¥ /N Company
—E-HF
2015
PR—F BB—F mat
Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total
THERT THERT THERT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
51| 7 EL fth & A5 BR R Financial liabilities included
kEFEECERAR in other payables and accruals 2,031 - 2,031
HEBBTET Guarantees given to banks
MEBARMEERR in connection with facilities
Mm#s TRITZ R granted to subsidiaries 17,848 - 17,848

19,879 - 19,879
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

¥ /N Company
—T-lF
2014
PR—F HiA—F Bt
Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total
FHET FHAT TR
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bl A H b FE A BR R Financial liabilities included
hEFTEBEZERAE in other payables and accruals 74 - 74
FEASTPN B 2 AIBR X Due to subsidiaries - 198,578 198,578
MABRITRT Guarantees given to banks in
MEARINEER connection with facilities granted
e T iRIT 2 R to subsidiaries 13,800 - 13,800
13,874 198,578 212,452
Sh it [ B Foreign currency risk

AEBEPRRZEBREAR - ZERAMR
XE2EBEMNHEERBEE (B
WEEEERRIN) - AEEA BN R
B 5 R M EN B 5 R ASNE &
' -

WA TS B R AE S A B B T 2
BRT - ARERAEERZ A2
BB - B3R RIS A BRI
1B U (ARt EERA B
AT EEBME) -

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Certain trade receivables and payables of
the Group are denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi and Japanese yen exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

s (48) Foreign currency risk (continued)
BADER
(EB1]) 2 i,
b N=la e d 288 (R )R
Change in Increase/

Change profit/(loss) (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*
FHET FAT

% HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RF 2015
BRTTHATEE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens

MEXREE : against:
AR Renminbi 5 (436) -
H Japanese yen 8 418 -
EBTTHIATEE If the Hong Kong dollar

bE = FHE - strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 436 -
H Japanese yen 8 (418) -
—E—F 2014
EBTHATEE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens

fE REZE - against:
AR¥E Renminbi 5 (753) -
H Japanese yen 8 443 -
EABTTHATEE If the Hong Kong dollar

fE A : strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 753 _
H Japanese yen 8 (443) -
* TERERRERE *  Excluding accumulated losses
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which
is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the current ratio over one.
The current ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

AEE
Group
—B-RF —FAF
2015 2014
FExT FHTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
mMENEE Current assets 182,980 159,425
mEBE Current liabilities 87,756 102,861
ViSRS Current ratio 2.09 1.55
B R SRk 2 HE 44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

BEHEN —_E—haFE~A=-1+=H
DESESSH ERKETE -

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on
23 June 2015.
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Financial Summary

AMBUFEREERT BRI ZEF

This summary does not form part of the audited financial

— & fn o statements.
4 RESULTS
BZ=A=1t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March
—T——% —EF-f T-=F —T-WmF ZFE-IF
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
AT BT TET AT TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000
WA Revenue 622,855 478,708 383,340 349,382 349,382
BAIEE Loss before tax (31,485) (76,872) (76,688) (86,789)  (110,504)
B Income tax (292) (46) 3 (16) (13)
AEEEE Loss for the year (31,777) (76,918) (76,685) (86,805)  (110,517)
FE(E%F]/(B18) - Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
ARNERERBA Equity holders
of the Company (31,807) (73,182) (75,724) (80,409)  (107,460)
Ll 3 Non-controlling interests 30 (3,736) (961) (6,396) (3,057)
AEEEE Loss for the year (31,777) (76,918) (76,685) (86,805)  (110,517)
EEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+-H
As at 31 March
—E——% T ZT-=F —T-WmE C—E-IF
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
FAET THEL FET THET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000
BEBE Total assets 610,111 523,959 431,960 349,791 339,496
BfERE Total liabilities (136,403)  (112,406) (96,223)  (102,861)  (129,756)
473,708 411,553 335,737 246,930 209,740
ARAIRERA A Equity attributable to equity
JE 15 P 1 holders of the Company 469,967 407,403 332,392 250,509 216,311
L2l g Non-controlling interests 3,741 4,150 3,345 (3,579) (6,571)
473,708 411,553 335,737 246,930 209,740
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8 B

Name/location

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31

March 2015 are set out below:

5l
Type

5

Lease term

HEWE

Leasehold properties:

1. BBENBEERTEIR
EMIET 0212
E13-24K T H K
Ho & P3 SRR EAL
Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

2. PRRZRZEESE TR
REmkTiR
SAHERER
Ut
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China

3. HEERAE
J& M T R ER 3L
8] B 96 5%
96 Ban He Road
Guangzhou Science Park
Guangzhou City
Guangdong Province
The People’s Republic of China

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

Industrial
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R EH

Medium-term lease

R

Medium-term lease

REH

Medium-term lease
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